COMMUNICATIONS AND REPORTS
JANUARY 23, 2024

The following communications and reports were received, duly noted, and ordered
placed on file with the Clerk:

COMMUNICATIONS

A. Fully executed Settlement Agreement and Release of Claims with Romeo Smith
and Special Administrator of the Estate of Niko Smith for Agenda Item 5G2 of the
June 13, 2017, Board of County Commissioners’ meeting, Minute Item 17-0457.

B. Fully executed Resolution adopting the amended South Valleys Area Plan for
Agenda Item 16 of the October 23, 2007, Board of County Commissioners’
meeting, Minute Item 07-1249.

C. Fully executed Resolution adopting the updated Verdi Area Plan for Agenda Item
23 of the August 26, 2008, Board of County Commissioners’ meeting, Minute Item
08-963.

D. Notice of Appeal from the State of Nevada Department of Taxation dated

December 19, 2023.

MONTHLY STATEMENTS/REPORTS

A. Clerk of the Court Monthly Financial Statement for the month ending December
31, 2023.
B. Office of the Washoe County Treasurer, Monthly Financial Statement for the

month ending December 31, 2023.

ANNUAL STATEMENTS/REPORTS

A. City of Reno Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2023.

B. City of Sparks Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2023.

C. Palomino Valley General Improvement District Financial Statements and Required
Supplementary Information for fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

D. Truckee Meadows Water Authority Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022.



Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility Financial Statements Fiscal Year
Ended June 30, 2023.



SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF CLAIMS

This Settlement Agreement and Release of Claims (hereinafter "Agreement") is made and
entered into by and between Plaintiffs Romeo Smith, and Special Administrator of the Estate of
Niko Smith, and N.S., a minor by and through his guardian Jillian Cortez, (hereinafter referred to
as "Plaintiffs") and Defendants, Washoe County Deputies Brandon Wood and Emmanuel
Figueroa, and Washoe County Sergeant Corey Soiferino (hereinafter referred to as
“Defendants™).

WHEREAS, Plaintiffs filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court of Nevada
against Defendants in an action numbered 3:17-CV-001 33-MMD-WGC?;

WHEREAS, Romeo Smith was appointed Special Administrator of the Estate of Niko
Smith in Docket No. PR17-00074 before the Probate Court of the Second Judicial District Court
in and for Washoe County (“Probate Court™);

WHEREAS, the parties desire to resolve and settle all existing claims concerning the
issues that, as of the date of this Agreement, have been and could have been raised in the
Litigation and concerning all matters, its subject matter and any and all disputes relating to the
action.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises and other
good and valuable consideration set forth herein, Plaintiff and Defendants agree as follows:

1. SETTLEMENT PAYMENT AND RELEASE OF CLAIMS: For and in
consideration of the payment of Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($75,000) to
Plaintiffs by Defendants, by signature to this Agreement, the parties agree to fully and forever
releases, acquits and discharges, as well as their administrators, agencies, agents, assignees,
attorneys, contractors, departments, directors, divisions, employees, employers, executors, heirs,
insurers, officers, principals, representatives, servants, subrogees, subsidiaries, successors, and
spouses, of and from any and all attorney's fees, causes of action, claims, costs, damages,
expenses, indemnities, liabilities, and obligations of every kind and nature, in law, equity or
otherwise, filed or otherwise, presently known and unknown, suspected and unsuspected,
disclosed and undisclosed, which they now have against Defendants by reason of any injury, loss
and damages, actual and consequential, arising out of or in any way related to the subject of the
Litigation,

The aforementioned payment will be satisfied by a check to payable jointly to Plaintiffs and his
counsel of record, Terry Keyser-Cooper and Luke Busby, within 7 days of execution of this
Agreement.

2. DISMISSAL OF ACTIONS WITH PREJUDICE: This Agreement is expressly
contingent upon the Plaintiffs’ dismissal with prejudice of the underlying Complaint against
Defendants and the entire Litigation. Subsequent to the approvals required in Section 13 below,
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Each party to the Litigation shall execute a Stipulation for Dismissal With Prejudice, dismissing
all claims of all parties asserted in the Litigation, and providing that each party shall bear its own
costs and attorney's fees.

3. NO ADMISSIONS: It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that this
Agreement represents a compromise settlement of various matters, and that the promises of
payment made in consideration of this Agreement shall not be construed to be an admission of
any liability or obligation by any party hereto.

4., OTHER BENEFITS: Except as specifically set forth in this Agreement, the Plaintiff
shall be entitled to no other benefits or other remuneration or compensation in settlement of his
claims arising from and related to the matters that have and could have been raised in the
Litigation, and concerning all matters relating to its subject and any disputes between the
Plaintiff and Defendants.

5. ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS: Each party shall pay its own attorney's fees
and costs arising out of or in any way related to and or connected with the Litigation.

6. ASSIGNMENT: The parties hereto represent that they have not previously assigned
any claims, demands, actions and or causes of action arising out of or in any way related to the
Litigation.

7. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT: Each party to this Agreement has
participated in the preparation and drafting of this Agreement. As such, the parties acknowledge
that any doctrine of law which may operate to imply any ambiguity in this Agreement against
any party hereto as the profferor of the Agreement is not applicable to this Agreement.
Accordingly, this Agreement shall be interpreted as if the parties jointly and equally prepared
and drafted each word, sentence and paragraph hereto.

8. APPLICABLE LAW: This Agreement shall be deemed to have been entered into
and shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada, as
applied to contracts made and to be performed entirely within Nevada. The parties hereto
consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Second Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada,
in and for the County of Washoe for the enforcement of this Agreement.

9. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of each
party and their affiliates, agencies, agents, assigns, contractors, departments, divisions, heirs,
officers, directors, employees, independent representatives, parent corporations, partners,
personal representatives, servants, sharcholders, spouses, subsidiary corporations, and

Successors.

10. SEVERABILITY: The illegality or invalidity of any provision or portion of this
Agreement shall not effect the validity of the remainder of the Agreement and this Agreement



shall be construed as if such provision did not exist. The unenforceability of such provision shall
not be held to render any other provision or provisions of this Agreement unenforceable.

11. ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT: The parties hereto have carefully read this
Agreement in its entirety before signing the same, and it is understood by the parties hereto that
this Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement of the parties hereto and such is intended as a
complete and exclusive statement of the promises, representations, negotiations, discussions, and
other agreements that may have been made in connection with the subject matter hereof. This
Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto and all the terms and
provisions of this Agreement are contractual and are not merely recitals. This Agreement was
signed and executed voluntarily and without reliance upon any statement or representation not
specifically set forth in this Agreement. No modification or amendment to this Agreement shall
be binding upon the parties unless the same is in writing and signed by the respective parties
hereto.

12. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE: The parties hereto represent that they have the
authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the persons and entities on whose behalf they
are signing. The parties hereto further represent that the signatures on this Agreement are the
genuine, usual and customary signatures of the persons executing this Agreement and are fully
binding on such persons and entities, and each person signing is legally and mentally competent
to sign this Agreement and is fully authorized by law to bind himself or the principal on whose
behalf he is signing.

13. COURT APPROVAL REQUIRED: The Parties acknowledge and agree that this
Agreement is subject to the review and approval of the United States District Court or the
Second Judicial District Court for compromise of the claim of a minor pursuant to NRS 41.200
and the Probate Court pursuant to the Probate Court’s February 24, 2017 Order appointing
Romeo Smith as Special Administrator of the Estate of Niko Smith.

(signatures on following page)
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WHEREFORE, THE FOLLOWING PERSONS FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY SIGN THIS
AGREEMENT ON THE DATES INDICATED BELOW:

DATED this o/ 17 day of 2017,

T S

Romeo Smith, as Special Adn}iniélr_ator of the Estate of Niko Smith

KN D [Peellely
an Cortez, as Guardian Ad Litem of N.S.

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT:
Datedthis (T dayof “[@~2 2017,

e Fefo - Lo5~—

Terri Keyer-Cooper, counsel for Pldintiff

DATED, this day of s 201

Washoe Cotnty Board of County Commissioners

APPROVED AS TQ FORM AND CONTENT:
Dated this (3 day of  Jome - ,2017.

Attorneys for Defendants



WASHOE COUNTY COMMISSION 1001 E. 9th Street
P.O.Box 11130

Reno, Nevada 89520
775.328.2005

RESOLUTION
ADOPTING THE AMENDED SOUTH VALLEYS AREA PLAN (CP05-004),
A PART OF THE WASHOE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

WHEREAS, Sections 278.150, 278.170 and 278.210, Nevada Revised Statutes,
specify that the Washoe County Planning Commission may prepare, adopt and amend a master
(comprehensive) plan for all or any part of the County, subject to County Commission approval;

WHEREAS, Section 278.160, Nevada Revised Statutes, specifies that the master
plan shall include the following subject matter or portions thereof as deemed appropriate:
community design, conservation plan, economic plan, historic properties preservation plan,
housing plan, land use plan, population plan, public buildings, public services and facilities,
recreation plan, safety plan, seismic safety plan, solid waste disposal plan, streets and highways
plan, transit plan, and transportation plan, and such other plans as judged necessary;

WHEREAS, Public hearings on the adoption of the amended SOUTH
VALLEYS AREA PLAN, a part of the Washoe County Comprehensive Plan, were held on
February 20, 2007 and July 11, 2007, by said Planning Commission;

WHEREAS, The Washoe County Planning Commission has found that the
SOUTH VALLEYS AREA PLAN, a part of the Washoe County Comprehensive Plan, and the
most recent amendment, together with the applicable maps and descriptive matter, provide a
Jong-term general plan for the development of the County including the subject matter currently
deemed appropriate for inclusion in the Comprehensive Plan, and has submitted the amendment
to the SOUTH VALLEYS AREA PLAN to the Board of County Commissioners, Washoe
County, with the recommendation for approval and adoption thereof;

WHEREAS, Section 278.220, Nevada Revised Statutes, specifies that the Board
of County Commissioners of Washoe County, Nevada, may adopt and endorse plans for Washoe
County as reported by the Planning Commission, in order to conserve and promote the public

health, safety and general welfare;

WHEREAS, Public hearings on the adoption of the Washoe County
Comprehensive Plan, including the SOUTH VALLEYS AREA PLAN, was first held on
May 21, 1991, with the most recent amendment to the SOUTH VALLEYS AREA PLAN being
held on May 22, 2007, July 24, 2007 and August 28, 2007, by the Board of County
Commissioners of Washoe County, Nevada;

WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the public hearing of August 28, 2007 the
Board of County Commissioners exercised its authority pursuant to Section 278.220 and
endorsed that part of the amendment that pertains to the areas known as Steamboat and Pleasant
Valleys, and did not endorse that part of the amendment that refers to the area known as Washoe

Valley; t
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WHEREAS, the resulting master plan will be a compilation of the language and
maps endorsed by the Board of County Commissioners and the plan as it existed prior to
amendment, such that the previously adopted plan will continue to be applied to Washoe Valley
and the amended language and maps as endorsed and adopted by the Board of County
Commissioners will be applied to Pleasant Valley and Steamboat Valley.

WHEREAS, the resulting master plan, an amendment to the SOUTH VALLEYS
AREA PLAN, a part of the Washoe County Comprehensive Plan, pursuant to Section 278.0282,
Nevada Revised Statutes, was endorsed for conformance review with the Truckee Meadows
Regional Plan;

WHEREAS, A public hearing for the review of conformance of the Washoe
County Comprehensive Plan, including the SOUTH VALLEYS AREA PLAN, was first held on
October 23, 1991, with the most recent amendment to the SOUTH VALLEYS AREA PLAN
being held on January 9, 2008, by the Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Commission, at
which time the plan was deemed in conformance with the Truckee Meadows Regional Plan; and

WHEREAS, The amendment to the SOUTH VALLEYS AREA PLAN, a part of
the Washoe County Comprehensive Plan, which is in conformance with the Truckee Meadows
Regional Plan, has completed all the necessary requirements for adoption as specified in the
Nevada Revised Statutes and Article 820, Amendment of Comprehensive Plan, of the Washoe

County Development Code; now, therefore, it is hereby

RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA, That the Board does hereby adopt and endorse the amended
SOUTH VALLEYS AREA PLAN, a part of the Washoe County Comprehensive Plan, to serve as
a guide for the orderly growth and development of Washoe County, Nevada.

ADOPTED This day of , 2008.

W E COUNTY COMMISSION

Hd Mt

obert M. Larkin, Chair
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WASHOE COUNTY COMMISSION 1001 E. 9th Street
P.O.Box 11130

Reno, Nevada §9520

(775) 328-2005

RESOLUTION
ADOPTING THE UPDATED VERDI AREA PLAN (CP06-007),
A PART OF THE WASHOE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

WHEREAS, Sections 278.150, 278.170 and 278.210, Nevada Revised Statutes,
specify that the Washoe County Planning Commission may prepare, adopt and amend a master
(comprehensive) plan for all or any part of the County, subject to County Commission approval;

WHEREAS, Section 278.160, Nevada Revised Statutes, specifies that the master
plan shall include the following subject matter or portions thereof as deemed appropriate:
community design, conservation plan, economic plan, historic properties preservation plan,
housing plan, land use plan, population plan, public buildings, public services and facilities,
recreation plan, safety plan, seismic safety plan, solid waste disposal plan, streets and highways
plan, transit plan, and transportation plan, and such other plans as judged necessary;

WHEREAS, A public hearing on the adoption of the amended VERDI AREA
PLAN, a part of the Washoe County Comprehensive Plan, was held on July 15, 2008 by said
Planning Commission;

WHEREAS, The Washoe County Planning Commission has found that the
VERDI AREA PLAN, a part of the Washoe County Comprehensive Plan, together with the
applicable maps and descriptive matter, provide a long-term general plan for the development of
the County including the subject matter currently deemed appropriate for inclusion in the
Comprehensive Plan, and has submitted the amendment to the VERDI AREA PLAN to the Board
of County Commissioners, Washoe County, with the recommendation for approval and adoption
thereof;

WHEREAS, Section 278.220, Nevada Revised Statutes, specifies that the Board
of County Commissioners of Washoe County, Nevada, may adopt and endorse plans for Washoe
County as reported by the Planning Commission, in order to conserve and promote the public
health, safety and general welfare;

WHEREAS, A public hearing on the adoption of the Washoe County
Comprehensive Plan, including the VERDI AREA PLAN, was first held on May 21, 1991, with
the most recent amendment to the VERDI AREA PLAN being held on August 26, 2008 by the
Board of County Commissioners of Washoe County, Nevada,;

WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the public hearing, the Board of County
Commissioners endorsed the amendment to the VERDI AREA PLAN, a part of the Washoe
County Comprehensive Plan, pursuant to Section 278.0282, Nevada Revised Statutes, for
conformance review with the Truckee Meadows Regional Plan,;

SN 37



WHEREAS, A public hearing for the review of conformance of the Washoe
County Comprehensive Plan, including the VERDI AREA PLAN, was first held on October 23,
1991, with the most recent amendment to the VERDI AREA PLAN being held on October 8§,
2008, by the Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Commission, at which time the plan was
deemed in conformance with the Truckee Meadows Regional Plan; and

WHEREAS, The amendment to the VERDI AREA PLAN, a part of the Washoe
County Comprehensive Plan, which is in conformance with the Truckee Meadows Regional Plan,
has completed all the necessary requirements for adoption as specified in the Nevada Revised
Statutes and Article 820, Amendment of Comprehensive Plan, of the Washoe County
Development Code; now, therefore, it is hereby

RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA That the Board does hereby adopt and endorse the amended
VERDI AREA PLAN, a part of the Washoe County Comprehensive Plan, to serve as a guide for
the orderly growth and development of Washoe County, Nevada.

ADOPTED This 9th day of October, 2008.

WASHOE COUNTY COMMISSION

gﬁ%w/f{QZ%qu,/

Robert M. Larkin, Chair
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STATE OF NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION

Web Site: https://tax.nv.gov
Call Center: (866) 962-3707

JOE LOMBARDO
Governor CARSON CITY OFFICE
GEORGE KELESIS 3850 Arrowhead Dr., 2™ Floor
Chair, Nevada Tax Commission Carson City, Nevada 89706
SHELLIE HUGHES Phone: (775) 684-2000
Executive Director Fax: (775) 684-2020

December 19, 2023

LAS VEGAS OFFICE
700 E. Warm Springs Rd, Suite 200
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Phone (702) 486-2300
Fax (702) 486-2373

RENO OFFICE
4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite L235
Reno, NV 89502
Phone: (775) 687-9999
Fax: (775) 688-1303

To All counties, incorporated cities, and unincorporated towns of the State of Nevada:

Please consider this official notice, per Nevada Administrative Code 360.390(4), that the
following jurisdictions have submitted letters of appeal regarding the draft 2023 Population Estimates,

as estimated by the State Demographer: Town of Tonopah.

This is also official notice, per NAC 360.390(7), that in the event those appeals are not resolved,

administrative hearings will be held on those appeals as follows:
January 19, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. — Town of Tonopah
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Athcane Lsbeta—L arasn

Adriane Roberts-Larson
Deputy Executive Director
Nevada Department of Taxation



CLERK OF THE COURT
MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT
STATE OF NEVADA, COUNTY OF WASHOE
Month Ending December 31, 2023

Alicia L. Lerud, Clerk of the Court, in compliance with NRS 19.090,and
being first duly sworn, and under penalty of perjury, deposes and says that the following
is a full and correct statement of all fees, percentages or compensation received in my
official capacity during the preceding month:

Clerk of the Court Law Library Fund $ 5,130.00
Additional Divorce Filing Fee $ 100.00
*County General Fund $ 98,760.50
eFile Fee (General Fund) $ 25,200.00
State Civil Fee $ 15,361.00
Legal Aid Filing Fee $ 20,996.00
TOTAL $165,547.50
= Alicia L. ferdd
District Court Admir?i[stlfatorfClerk of Court

* Included in County General Fund are the following fees: balance of civil action,
certified copies of all miscellaneous.



UNIT ID.
Date:

CLERK - JUDICIAL

January 2, 2024

CASH REGISTER
READOUT

T.R. Rec.No.
( Doc. No)

FOR AUDIT AND CONTROL PURPOSES PLEASE INDICATE THE REASON FOR THIS COLLECTION.

(Attach any additional document if this would help to clarify the collection.)

DISTRICT COURT FEES COLLECTED FOR DEC 2023

e e
ACCOUNTS TO BE CREDITED
| ACCOUNTING CODE NUMBERS AMOUNT
CRIGFIOP ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION  |ORDER COST CENTER | ACCOUNT
OP Legal Aid (Washoe Legal Services) (01) 990023 441007 10,904.50
OP Legal Aid (Elderly Indigent) Sr. Center (02, 250411| 460720 3,901.50
oP Legal Aid (Washoe Legal Services) (08) 990023| 441078 6,190.00
TOTAL $ 165,547.50
Prepared By: Valerie Moser Y i r

Washoe County Treasurer

legataid $ 20,996.00

slate civil
law library
general

add'l div

TOTAL: _$ 165,547.50

Rev 05/07



OFFICE OF THE
WASHOE COUNTY TREASURER

MONTHLY STATEMENT OF WASHOE COUNTY TREASURER FOR

MONTH ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
WASHOE COUNTY

RENO, NEVADA

RE: NRS 354.280

Honorable Commissioners:

| hereby submit this summary record of the source and amount of all receipts, apportionments
to, payments from and balances in all funds and separate accounts as required by referenced
statute. Detailed information is available in my office.

CASH ON DEPOSIT

OUTSTANDING

BOOK BALANCE

$82,656,852.75

$3,133,020.08

$79,523,832.67

INVESTMENTS (Reported at Market — All Groups)

$955,147,536.33

Unapportioned Funds (Secured & Unsecured)

Washoe County | Restricted Funds

Other Agencies

Total

$24,365,595.27 $7,419,872.71

$48,664,436.80

$80,449,904.78

Brenda Mathers, Chief Deputy Treasurer

ADMINISTRATION COMPLEX

PO BOX 30039

1001 EAST NINTH STREET RENO, NEVADA 89520-3039

SUITE D-140

PHONE (775) 328-2510
FAX (775) 328-2500
www.washoecounty.gov/treas



CITY OF RENO, NEVADA

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE
FINANCIAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2023
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City of Reno, Nevada

Annual
Comprehensive
Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2023

Prepared by the Finance Department

Vicki Van Buren — Director of Finance
Matthew Taylor, CPA — Assistant Finance Director
Crystal Dean — Accounting Manager
Robert Carson — Senior Management Analyst
Mark Stone — Grants Administrator
Renee Beloat — Management Assistant
Travis Floyd — Accounting Assistant
Ayreen Mora — Accounting Assistant
Megan Jessop — Accounting Technician
Kayla Nguyen — Accounting Technician
Daniel Stephan — Accounting Technician

Special Thanks to the Budgeting and Sewer Billing
Divisions



Table of Contents

PAGE
Introductory Section
Letter of transmittal i
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting vi
Organization chart vii
City principal officials viil
Financial Section
Report of independent auditors 1
Management's discussion and analysis 4
Basic Financial Statements
Government-wide financial statements
Statement of net position 20
Statement of activities 22
Fund financial statements
Balance sheet — governmental funds 23
Reconciliation of the balance sheet — governmental funds to the statement of net position 25
Statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances — governmental funds 26
Reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances —
governmental funds to the statement of activities 27
Statement of net position — proprietary funds 28
Statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position — proprietary funds 30
Statement of cash flows — proprietary funds 31
Statement of net position — fiduciary funds 33
Statement of changes in net position — fiduciary funds 34
Notes to basic financial statements 35
Required Supplementary Information
Postemployment benefits other than pensions — schedule of changes in total OPEB liability 84
Postemployment benefits other than pensions — actuarially determined contribution information 85
Multiple-employer cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan — proportionate share of the collective
net pension liability information 86
Multiple-employer cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan — proportionate share of statutorily
required contribution information 87
Agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan — schedule of changes in net pension liability 88
Agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan — pension plan information 89
Agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan — actuarially determined contribution information 90
Schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances — budget to actual — general fund 91
Major special revenue funds
Schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - budget to actual —streets fund 96
Notes to required supplementary information 97

Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules
Major governmental funds
Debt service funds
Schedule of Revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances — budget to actual —
Cabela’s Fund 98
Capital projects funds
Schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances — budget to actual -
Public Works Fund 99



Table of Contents (continued)

Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules (continued)
Non-major governmental funds
Combining balance sheet — non-major governmental funds
Combining statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances — non-major
governmental funds
Combining balance sheet — non-major special revenue funds
Combining statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances — non-major
special revenue funds
Schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances — budget to actual —
HUD and State Housing Grants Fund
Community Assistance Fund
Performance Deposits Fund
Drainage Facility Impact Fee Fund
Room Tax Fund
Stabilization Fund
Courts Fund
Drug Forfeiture Fund
Opioid Recoveries Fund
Redevelopment Agency Fund

Debt service funds
Combining balance sheet — non-major debt service funds
Combining statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances — non-major debt service funds
Schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances — budget to actual —
City of Reno Fund
Railroad Fund
Downtown Events Center Fund
Special Assessment Districts Fund
Redevelopment Agency Fund

Capital projects funds
Combining balance sheet — non-major capital projects funds
Combining statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances — non-major capital
projects funds
Schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances — budget to actual —
Room Tax Surcharge Fund
Special Ad Valorem Fund
Parks Fund
Streets Fund
Downtown Events Center Fund
City Bonds Fund

Proprietary funds
Major enterprise funds
Schedule of revenues, expenses and changes in net position — budget to actual ~
Sanitary Sewer Fund
Building Permit Fund
Internal service funds
Combining statement of net position — internal service funds
Combining statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position — internal service funds
Combining statement of cash flows — internal service funds
Schedule of revenues, expenses and changes in net position — budget to actual —
Motor Vehicle Fund
Risk Retention Fund
Self-Funded Medical Plan Fund
Self-Funded Workers Compensation Fund

PAGE

100

101
102

104

106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115

116
117

118
119
120
121
122

123

124

125
126
127
128
129
130

131
132

133
134
135

136
137
138
139



Table of Contents (continued)

PAGE
Statistical Section
Net position by component 140
Changes in net position 141
Fund balance, governmental funds 144
Changes in fund balance, governmental funds 145
Assessed and estimated actual value of taxable property 147
Property tax rates — direct and overlapping governments 148
Principal property taxpayers 149
Property tax levies and collections 150
Licenses and permits by category 151
Ratios of outstanding debt by type 152
Direct and overlapping governmental activities debt 153
Ratios of general bonded debt outstanding and legal debt margin information 154
Pledged revenue bond coverage 155
Demographic and economic statistics 157
Principal employers 158
Full-time equivalent city government employees by function/program 159
Operating indicators by function/program 160
Capital asset statistics by function/program 162
Business License Fees
Schedule of business license fees 163
Auditor Comments
Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 164

Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Required by the Uniform Guidance 166
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 169
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Award 172

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 173



Introductory Section




December 5, 2023

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of the City of Reno, Nevada:

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the City of Reno for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023
is hereby submitted. State law requires that local governments provide an annual audit of its financial
statements by independent certified public accountants in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City of Reno.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the City of Reno has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is
designed both to protect the City’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of the City of Reno’s financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their
benefits, the City of Reno’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report
is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The City of Reno's financial statements have been audited by Moss Adams LLP. The goal of the
independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Reno
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit,
that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the City of Reno'’s financial
statements for fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The
independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the
basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of
transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and the two documents should be read in conjunction.
The City of Reno’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.



Profile of the Government

Reno, Nevada, the largest community in Northern Nevada and the fourth largest city in the state, began as
“Lake’s Crossing” in 1859 at a toll bridge for pioneers crossing the Truckee River on their way to California.
In 1868, the Central Pacific Railroad established a town site in the area as a new stop in the growing
transcontinental railroad. The City was incorporated in 1903. It is located in the southern part of Washoe
County, nestled in the Sierra Nevada Mountains 35 miles northeast of Lake Tahoe, in the area called the
Truckee Meadows.

The City has a Council-Manager form of government with six Council members elected for staggered terms
of four years. The Mayor is the chief elected official and formal representative of the City. Elected at large,
the Mayor serves for a four-year term. The City Manager is selected by the Council and is the City’s chief
administrative official. The City Manager is responsible for all City business.

The City provides a full range of municipal services as established by statute or the City’s charter. These
services include public safety (police, fire, dispatch, code enforcement and building inspection), public
works, public improvements, planning and zoning, community development, parks and recreation,
wastewater treatment, and general administrative services. In addition to general government activities,
the City Council is financially accountable for the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Reno; therefore,
the activities of the Agency are included in this report. The Housing Authority of the City of Reno is a related
organization of the City of Reno but not a component unit because the City’s accountability does not extend
beyond the appointment of board members.

The City of Reno maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions as part of the
annual appropriated budget, as augmented, that was approved by the City Council and the State of
Nevada's Department of Taxation. In April, the City Manager submits a tentative budget for the fiscal year
to the City Council, the Nevada Department of Taxation, and the residents of Reno. The Nevada
Department of Taxation notifies the City Council as to whether the budget is in compliance with the law and
appropriate regulations. Public hearings, at which all changes to the tentative budget are discussed, must
be held by the governing body not sooner than the third Monday in May and not later than the last day in
May. The City Council adopts the budget prior to June 1st and submits it to the Department of Taxation for
final approval no later than June 1st.

All amendments to the adopted budget are a matter of public record by actions of the City Council. Per
Nevada law, the City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within functions (General Fund)
or funds if the City Council is notified at the next regular meeting and the action is noted in the official
minutes. Amendments which affect the total fund appropriations or transfers between funds are
accomplished through formal City Council approval. Various supplemental appropriations were approved
for the year to reflect necessary changes in spending and the corresponding additional resources available.

Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds, capital project funds, enterprise
funds, and internal service funds are included in the annual budget. Budgetary control is exercised at the
function level. Unencumbered amounts lapse at year end. However, encumbrances generally are re-
appropriated as part of the following year’s first budget augmentation.

Local Economic Conditions

The region’s economy has long relied on consumption-related activities such as logistics, construction,
tourism, and gaming, and the area, known as Truckee Meadows, offers an extensive array of hospitality
and casino options as well as vast recreational opportunities. Over the last decade, the economic structure
of the region has expanded to include more technology-based industries. This economic diversification
supports increased revenue stabilization for the City.

In June 2023, the unemployment rate in the Reno-Sparks region stood at 4.5%, which has increased over
the past year with a low of 3.4% in September 2022 and a high of 4.5% in January, February and June



2023. Overall, Nevada had an unemployment rate of 5.4%, exceeding the national average of 3.6% in
June 2023. This is mainly due to the large gaming and tourism industries that remain the largest economy
in southern Nevada.

The median price of residential properties sold in Reno peaked during July 2022. City of Reno home values
decreased 9% over the past year, with the median home price of a single-family home peaking in July 2022
at $574,755. Since July, the median home value of a single-family home has fallen to $562,500 in
September 2023. Home sales for the month of September 2023 were 370 units, which is a decrease from
the same month in 2022, where units peaked at 476. The inventory of homes on the market remains low,
which is keeping prices stable even with the rising interest rates.

In fiscal year 2022/23, property taxes increased 8.1% and for fiscal year 2023/24, the City budgeted for
property taxes to increase 5.0%. Due to the formula in Nevada Revised Statutes, there is a cap on the
increase allowed in property taxes except for taxes generated by new construction. For fiscal year 2023/24,
the projected increase was estimated to be 3.0% from existing residential and commercial properties and
the remaining 2.0% from growth. The Washoe County Assessor anticipates property taxes will continue to
rise, though at a modest pace. The housing market has slowed down for single family homes; however,
there is continued growth in commercial construction.

Consolidated tax for fiscal years 2010/11 through 2021/22 showed steady increases, with an average
increase of 7.8%. However, in FY2022/23 receipts declined due to inflation and recession concerns
nationwide. A 6% increase was budgeted and consolidated tax came in under budget by 8.2%. Franchise
fees showed significant growth during the year and came in over budget for the year in an amount that filled
the gap caused by a decline in consolidated tax. This trend was recognized mid-year, and an adjustment
was not needed in the overall revenue totals projected. For fiscal year 2023/24, the City adjusted the
budget to reflect the flattening out of the revenue and as of August 2023, consolidated tax receipts are
exceeding budget for FY 2023/24 by 2.2%.

The State of Nevada, Washoe County and City of Reno continue to focus efforts on diversifying the regional
economy. Although tourism still represents a key role in Reno's tax and employment base, the region has
slowly diversified into other industries including high-tech and health care. The City has benefitted from its
growing local tax base and correlated operating revenues in the last several years, allowing the City to build
up its accumulated general fund reserves.

The Economic Development Association of Western Nevada (EDAWN) reports that Reno is ranked number
1 in the top 50 Small Cities to live in the United States in 2020 and ranked among the top U.S. cities for
young professionals in 2021. This is due to the natural beauty of the region as well as the pro-business
attitude of the area’s leaders. The City offers dense startup connections and an innovation-focused
entrepreneurial culture. Increasingly, technology companies and a highly educated workforce are driving
Reno’s popularity with companies like Tesla, Amazon, and Google. Other factors that increase the appeal
of Reno are the thriving restaurants and many special events. The Reno Aces AAA baseball team, as well
as the myriad of year-round outdoor activities from alpine skiing to hiking to kayaking, all contribute to
Outside Magazine naming Reno the happiest place to live in the U.S. in 2023.

The area climate boasts four distinct seasons, each with mild variations and few extremes. Winters typically
see lows in the 20s, while summers bring highs in the 90s. With the low humidity characteristic of the high-
dessert, even the coldest days feel less cold and hot days not so hot. Cloudy days and rainfall are
infrequent occurrences, with Reno enjoying over 250 days of abundant sunshine annually. While snowfall
is certain during the winter, it tends to melt away by late afternoon in the valleys. All of this makes the area
spectacular for enjoying the outdoors, including hunting, fishing, biking, hiking, skiing and many other
activities.

City management continues to control expenses given the uncertainty of the economy and high inflation.
Restructuring has occurred at all levels in the organization to promote efficiencies in operations and service
delivery, and additional opportunities are constantly being identified and analyzed. The City continues to



review vacancies prior to recruitment to determine if there are opportunities to restructure or provide service
differently.

Long-Term Financial Planning

The City continues to work with various community partners to recruit companies with high paying jobs in
targeted industries, such as renewable energy and technology, to the area. Nevada has no corporate or
personal income tax and is a right-to-work state which provides the opportunity for Reno to present itself
as a desirable location for corporate headquarters, manufacturing, and logistics facilities in a number of
high tech and service industries.

In order to position the City to successfully weather another long-term economic downturn while capitalizing
on opportunities that can be developed under the current conditions, staff continues developing a number
of financial planning tools. In addition to the measures mentioned above, a ten-year financial forecast is
used to project future resource needs and adjust operating programs to meet the available resources.

Furthermore, the City is collaborating with other local agencies on analyzing opportunities for shared service
and consolidation, as well as creating a regional approach to economic development. Partner organizations
include Washoe County, the City of Sparks, University of Nevada — Reno, EDAWN, the Reno-Sparks
Convention and Visitors Authority, the Regional Transportation Commission, Washoe County School
District and many others, both formally and informally. The community has a long history of successfully
collaborating on regional approaches to issues, with many services provided through interlocal agreements
or as shared services.

Additionally, the management team has begun deploying different tactics designed to increase efficiency
and effectiveness, including updated policies, process improvement initiatives and increased transparency.

Relevant Financial Policies

Rainy Day Reserves — In compliance with state law, the General Fund Financial Policy requires
unreserved fund balance to be budgeted at 4% of prior year expenditures, which was included in the fiscal
year 2022/23 adopted budget. The City is in compliance with this requirement and has budgeted for an
ending fund balance of 15% for fiscal year 2023/24. In fiscal year 2014/15, the City committed $2.1 million
of consolidated tax revenues to begin funding a Stabilization Special Revenue Fund. The balance on June
30, 2023 is approximately $3 million. The City recognizes the importance of these reserves, along with a
conservative approach to spending, in giving the City a greater level of flexibility in responding to unforeseen
revenue reductions. In addition, the City has funded a Contingency Account in the General Fund in the
amount of $1,000,000 for fiscal year 2023/24 for unanticipated expenditures.

OPEB Funding — The City’s past practice of funding primarily pay-as-you-go costs rather than the full
annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) costs has resulted in continued growth in the City’s net
liability. The City does not have the resources, at this time, needed to fully fund the annual OPEB expense,
including interest on the liability, but has created an OPEB trust so amounts may be put aside to fund this
growing liability. Through the adoption of the Budget Guiding Principles, Council has begun a funding
program through the allocation of a portion property tax growth to the OPEB trust. For the year ended June
30, 2023, the City transferred $3,996,860 to the trust.

Risk Management — In fiscal year 2020/21, the City implemented a more robust risk management program
to help control exposure to potential claims, and reduce costs. The current fiscal year is the second full year
with this program closely monitoring revenues and expenditures. The City strives to aggressively litigate
and resolve high exposure claims.



Major Initiatives

Each year, the Reno City Council revisits Reno’s purpose, vision, mission, and values; from that, Council
identifies strategic priorities which establish the programs and services funded for current and future fiscal
years. The City continues to build upon the Council initiatives of re-visioning Reno, focusing on long-term
fiscal planning, and performance management strategies to determine what services our residents need
and want, and to identify resources for those services.

As part of a resilient budget strategy, two key financial planning tools were developed. A ten-year financial
forecast to better project future resource needs, identify areas of concern and adjust operating programs
to meet available resources is maintained. Second, a 20+ year history is maintained that tracks significant
data points that assist with future projections. Although revenues have increased over the past decade, the
future is still uncertain. The influx of federal stimulus funds has bolstered revenues. High inflation and
market uncertainty are major concerns, and the full impact is difficult to predict. Long term planning that
incorporates resilient budget practices is critical during uncertain economic times.

Efforts were also focused on addressing the challenges of unfunded liabilities, reallocation of resources,
and reorganization of City operations. Throughout the year, management and Finance staff spent a great
deal of time ensuring that the City’s finances met all applicable standards and corrective actions were taken
to ensure that all funds were brought into alignment with Council policies, state law, and GAAP. Attention
continues to be focused on managing the City’s debt portfolio. A key emphasis was on making changes
that would support long-term stability by restructuring bonds when fiscally prudent.

Awards and Acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Reno for its annual
comprehensive financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. This was the 40th consecutive
year that the City of Reno has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized annual
comprehensive financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

The preparation of this report on a timely basis would not have been accomplished without the efficient and
dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department and Moss Adams LLP. We would like to
express our appreciation to all persons who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. In
closing, without the support and responsible leadership of the City Council of the City of Reno, preparation
of this report would not have been possible.

Respectfully submitted,

.// / h/’

Vicki Van Buren
Director of Finance
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CITY MANAGEMENT
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Doug Thornley, City Manager
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(Appointed by City Manager)
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Kerrie Koski, Public Works Director
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Report of Independent Auditors

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
City of Reno, Nevada

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Reno, Nevada (the City) as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2023, and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. :

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards (Government Auditing Standards), issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability
to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we
Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, postemployment benefits other than
pension schedules, multiple-employer cost-sharing defined benefit plan schedules, and agent
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan schedules as listed in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements and schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (collectively, the
supplementary information) are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on:the basic financial statements do not
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 5, 2023 on our consideration of City's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of City's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

M%#MW

Medford, Oregon
December 5, 2023
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City of Reno, Nevada
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

The following management discussion and analysis is presented to provide the reader with an overview of the financial
activity and overall financial condition of the City of Reno (the City). The following document should be read in conjunction
with the transmittal letter presented in the introductory section of this report to enhance the understanding of the financial
information presented.

Financial Highlights

Summary of Selected Statement of Net Position Information
Total Primary Government

2023 2022 Change

Cash, cash equivalents and investments,

unrestricted and restricted $ 526,259,938 $ 474,117,935 $ 52,142,003 1%
Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility 83,340,822 83,128,787 212,035 0%
Capital assets, net 1,513,696,152  1,426,171,191 87,424,961 6%
Bonds and notes payable, net of unamortized 0
premiums and discounts 518,325,293 470,857,329 47,467,964 10%
Net other post-employment benefits liability 121,310,461 133,546,458 (12,235,997) 9%
Net pension liability 362,299,545 173,851,338 178,448,207 103%
Total net position 1,031,449,491 967,206,046 64,243,445 7%

The increase in cash, cash equivalents and investments is due to the funds received from the bond issued to construct
the Public Safety Center and Moana Springs pool. There was also an increase in charges for services from business
licenses as well as in the enterprise funds in sewer fees.

The increase experienced in the City's net position is largely attributable to an increase in cash due to 1) the issuance of
long-term and medium-term obligations in the amount of $68,639,002 for the construction of the Public Safety Center,
Moana Springs Pool and police protective equipment 2) growth in property tax revenues and other intergovernmental
shared revenues; and 3) growth in charges for service, particularly in the enterprise funds.

The City’s investment in the Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility remained consistent due to new capital
contributions being equal to depreciation realized during the current fiscal year.

Capital assets, net of depreciation increased primarily due to dedicated streets, sewer lines and storm drains, as well as
new construction in progress related to infrastructure, the new Public Safety Center and the Moana Springs Pool.

The City issued two obligations during the year amounting to a $68.6 million increase for the Public Safety Center, Moana
Springs Pool, Fire Headquarters, and police protective equipment. The City also recorded the final $3.29 million in new
draws on the $55 million 2020 State Clean Water Revolving Loan Fund loan contract, the proceeds of which are being
used to expand the Reno/Stead Water Reclamation Facility in the growing North Valleys. Now that the project is complete
and all of the funds are drawn, the loan contract was converted to the 2020 bonds. Due to the additional draws and
obligations, total bonds and notes payable increased net of scheduled principal reductions.

The City’s other post-employment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, is
a new valuation for the current fiscal year. No assumptions were changed from the previous valuation other than to
increase the discount rate from 6.0% to 6.5%, the effect of which was a 9% decrease in the total OPEB liability. Deferred
inflows related to OPEB declined by $7.0 million and deferred outflows declined by $0.5 million, so the net impact on the
Statement of Net Position was a $18.7 million decrease.




City of Reno, Nevada
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

The net pension liability increased significantly at 103%. Deferred outflows of resources were 19% higher, while deferred
inflows were 70% lower. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the City records its proportionate
share of PERS’ unfunded liability and related amounts, even though Nevada Revised Statutes state that the City is not
liable for such amounts.

Summary of Selected Statement of Activity Information
Total Primary Government

2023 2022 Change
Charges for services $ 202,313,059 $ 182,041,843 $ 20,271,216 11%
Operating grants and contributions 27,420,988 24,057,072 3,363,916 14%
Capital grants and contributions 74,512,432 33,427,552 41,084,880 123%
Property taxes 101,958,471 92,257,926 9,700,545 11%
Intergovernmental shared revenue, unrestricted 100,722,789 101,812,439 (1,089,650) -1%
Total expenses 484,842 878 379,807,610 105,035,268 28%
Change in net position 64,243,446 67,271,735 (3,028,289)  -5%

Property tax collections continued to increase due to new construction that was started in prior years and the continued
rebounding of property values although growth in assessed values is limited by caps established in 2005 by Nevada’s State
Legislature. Charges for service increased for business licensing activity, gaming licenses, and certain other activities,
reflecting the effect of the reopening of businesses and State and local government offices. The City saw a tapering off in
building permit activity. Intergovernmental shared revenues, led by consolidated tax revenues, decreased 1% as consumer
spending was lowered due to increases in interest rates.

Capital grants and contributions increased significantly due to streets which were reconstructed by the Regional
Transportation Commission of Washoe County, Nevada and belong to the City of Reno. The construction costs are
recognized by the City as a contribution in the year the construction is completed.

Expenses increased by 28% as the City had large cost of living adjustments of 7% (on average) for staff as well as an
increase in the overall number of full time equivalent staff members. The medium term obligation in the amount of $9M was
spent on police protective equipment that was not capitalized under the City's existing policy. The City also increased
spending of the ARPA Funds that were received in FY 2021.

Financial Overview

The basic financial statements of the City are comprised of government-wide financial statements, fund financial
statements, and notes to the basic financial statements. Additionally, supplemental information to the financial statements
is contained in this report.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are presented to provide readers with a broad overview of the City that is similar
to that of the private sector.

The statement of net position presents information on alt assets and liabilities for the City. The difference between the total
assets and total liabilities is reported as "net position." Over time, increases and decreases in net position may serve as an
indicator of improvement or deterioration of financial condition.

The statement of activities reflects the changes which have occurred during the year. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods, such as uncollected taxes.




City of Reno, Nevada
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Governmental activities, which are supported primarily by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are distinguished from
activities that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of costs through user fees and charges, as is the case with
business-type activities. The City's governmental activities include those associated with general government; judicial
operations; public safety (police, fire and dispatch); public works; community development and support; culture and
recreation; and urban redevelopment. The business-type activities include sewer and building permit operations.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a legal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts to record activity involving assets and liabilities.
The City, as with other governmental agencies, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All funds of the City are divided into governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. Unlike the government-wide financial statements, however, governmental funds
focus on the current inflows and outflows of resources. This information is useful in determining current financial
requirements.

The City maintains 84 separate funds/fund groups that make up the governmental fund category. Information is presented
separately in the governmental balance sheet and the governmental statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balance in the following four (4) funds because they qualify as major funds under the GASB 34 definition: General
Fund, Street Special Revenue Fund, Cabela’s Debt Service Fund, and the City of Reno Capital Project Fund. Information
for the remaining funds, which did not meet the definition of a major fund, is aggregated for reporting purposes.

A separate budget is prepared annually for each governmental fund, reflécting anticipated resources and uses of the
collected resources. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for each governmental fund to demonstrate
budgetary compliance.

Proprietary Funds

The City maintains enterprise and internal service proprietary fund types. Enterprise funds are used to account for functions
presented in the business-type section of the government-wide financial statements. Enterprise funds consist of sanitary
sewer and building permit funds. Internal service funds are used to account for and allocate internal costs to the various
City functions. The internal service funds include the motor vehicle, risk retention, self-funded medical plan, and self-funded
workers compensation funds. The City's internal service fund functions primarily benefit governmental as opposed to
business-type activities. Consequently, they have been included in governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the City government. These
funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources are not available to support the
City's programs.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Notes to the basic financial statements are included to provide information that is crucial to the full and complete
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules are presented immediately following the notes to the basic
financial statement section of this report.
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Financial Statement Analysis

Government-wide Financial Statement Analysis

In order to enhance analysis and provide a means for evaluating the City's financial position, comparative summarized
statements of net position information are presented in in the following table.

Summary Statement of Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-Type Aclivities

Total Primary Government

Assets
Current, restricted and other assets
Investment in Truckee Meadows Water

2023

2022

2023

2022

2023

2022

$ 401,814,016

$ 357,619,340

$ 202,483,791

$ 197,217,467

$ 604,297,807

$ 554,836,807

Reclamation Facility 83,340,822 83,128,787 83,340,822 83,128,787
Capital Assets 1,023,200,391 960,978,841 490,395,761 465,192,349 1,513,596,152 1,426,171,190
Total Assets 1,425,014,407 1,318,598,181 776,220,374 745,538,603 2,201,234,781 2,064,136,784
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred amounts related to pensions 122,378,891 105,789,368 12,311,474 9,350,530 134,690,365 115,139,898
Deferred amounts related to OPEB 990,119 1,462,824 54,379 68,508 1,044,498 1,531,332
Deferred loss on debt refunding activity 17,960,925 18,545,787 - - 17,960,925 18,545,787
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 141,329,935 125,797,979 12,365,853 9,419,038 153,695,788 135,217,017
Liabilities
Current liabilities 128,359,935 127,162,698 35,463,650 32,371,892 163,823,585 159,534,590
Long-term liabilities 999,912,460 772,844,552 95,259,020 82,274,504 1,095,171,480 855,119,056
1,128,272,395 900,007,250 130,722,670 114,646,396 1,258,995,065 1,014,653,646
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred amount related to pensions 2,810,476 136,304,805 279,434 12,043,114 3,089,910 148,347,919
Deferred amounts related to OPEB 53,068,886 56,162,533 1,914,703 5,816,991 54,983,589 61,979,524
Deferred amounts related to leases 6,412,513 7,166,669 - - 6,412,513 7,166,669
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 62,291,875 199,634,007 2,194,137 17,860,105 64,486,012 217,494,112
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 607,909,984 599,449,583 423,519,492 400,350,066 1,031,429,476 999,799,649
Restricted 128,026,846 90,213,451 30,466,787 89,428,695 158,493,633 179,642,146
Unrestricted (360,156,758) (344,908,131) 201,683,140 132,672,379 (158,473,618) (212,235,752)

Total Net Position

$ 375,780,072

$ 344,754,903

$ 655,669,419

$ 622,451,140

$ 1,031,449,491

$ 967,206,043
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Summary Statement of Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government
Change Change Change
Assets
Current, restricted and other assets $ 44,194,676 12.36% $ 5,266,324 267% $ 49,461,000 8.91%
Investment in Truckee Meadows Water
Reclamation Facility 212,035 0.26% 212,035 0.26%
Capital Assets 62,221,550 6.47% 25,203,412 5.42% 87,424,962 6.13%
Total Assets 106,416,226 8.07% 30,681,771 4.12% 137,097,997 6.64%
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred amounts related to pensions 16,589,523 15.68% 2,960,944 31.67% 19,550,467 16.98%
Deferred amounts related to OPEB (472,705) -32.31% (14,129) -20.62% (486,834) -31.79%
Deferred loss on debt refunding activity (584,862) -3.15% - (584,862) -3.15%
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 15,531,956 12.35% 2,946,815 31.29% 18,478,771 13.67%
Liabilities
Current liabilities 1,197,237 0.94% 3,091,758 9.55% 4,288,995 2.69%
Long-term liabilities 227,067,908 29.38% 12,984,516 15.78% 240,052,424 28.07%
228,265,145 25.36% 16,076,274 14.02% 244,341,419 24.08%
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred amount related to pensions (133,494,329) -97.94% (11,763,680) -97.68% (145,258,009) -97.92%
Deferred amounts related to OPEB (3,093,647) -5.51% (3,902,288) -67.08% (6,995,935) -11.29%
Deferred amounts related to leases (754,156) -10.52% - (754,156) -10.52%
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources (137,342,132) -68.80% (15,665,968) -87.71% (153,008,100) -70.35%
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 8,460,401 1.41% 23,169,426 5.7%% 31,629,827 3.16%
Restricted 37,813,395 41.92% (58,961,908) -65.93% (21,148513) -11.77%
Unrestricted (15,248,627) 4.42% 69,010,761 52.02% 53,762,134  -2533%

——— ——————— | —— ————— ——
_—_ e — ——

Total Net Position $ 31,025,189 9.00% $ 33,218,279 534% $ 64,243,448 6.64%

Governmental Activities

The increase experienced in the City's current, restricted, and other assets relates primarily to the receipt of a $60 million
General Obligation Bond, issued in July 2022, for the purpose of constructing a Public Safety Center and the Moana Springs
Aquatic Center.

Investment in capital assets, net of depreciation and amortization increased primarily due to dedicated streets, as well as
new construction in progress related to infrastructure of the new Public Safety Center and the Moana Springs Aquatic
Center.

The decrease in current liabilities is due to the recognition of the ARPA Funds that were recorded as unearned revenue
when received in 2021 have been spent in the current year using the five major categories outlined by the U.S. Department
of the Treasury.

An increase in long-term liabilities is due to the additional debt of a $60 million General Obligation Bond issued in July 2022
and a $160 million increase in the City's proportionate share of net pension liability as reported by the State of Nevada.

Business-type Activities

Total assets for the City's business-type activities increased by 4.12%. The increase in current, restricted and other assets
is due to an increase of $5 million related to sewer connection fees that will be spent over the next 5 years to expand plant
operations; a reduction in the note receivable between the City and the City of Sparks; and an overall increase in charges
for services related to building permits.




City of Reno, Nevada
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Net capital assets increased due to the number of sewer line rehabilitation projects in various stages of completion and the
expansion in progress of the Reno-Sparks Water Reclamation Facility. The cost of these projects exceeded the effect of
depreciation and asset disposals during the fiscal year. Other assets include a majority ownership interest in the Truckee
Meadows Water Reclamation Facility (Facility).

The long-term liabilities for the City's business-type activities increased by 15.78% mainly due to an $18 million increase in
the City’s proportionate share of net pension liability as reported by the State of Nevada

Statement of Changes in Net Position

In order to enhance analysis and provide a means for evaluating the City's operating activities, comparative statement of
changes in net position information is summarized in the following table.

Summary Statement of Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government
Revenues 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 110,322666 $ 95325262 §$ 91,990,393 $ 86,716,581 $ 202,313,059 $ 182,041,843

Operating grants and contributions 25,031,092 24,047,072 2,389,896 10,000 27,420,988 24,057,072

Capital grants and contributions 61,356,011 18,155,583 13,156,421 15,271,969 74,512,432 33,427,552

Total Program Revenues 196,709,769 137,527,917 107,536,710 101,998,550 304,246,479 239,526,467
General revenues:

Property taxes 101,958,471 92,257,926 101,958,471 92,257,926

Room taxes 12,873,390 12,705,342 12,873,390 12,705,342

Sales tax dedicated to debt 15,058,567 14,259,513 15,058,567 14,259,513

Other sales taxes 2,662,465 2,647,955 2,662,465 2,647,955

Consolidated tax revenue 93,449,652 94,501,974 93,449,652 94,501,974

Intergov. shared revenue, unrestricted 7,273,137 7,310,465 7,273,137 7,310,465

Investment income 3,631,993 (8,137,719) 3,441,282 (4,736,615) 7,073,275 (12,874,334)

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 743,831 (7,092,728) (863,058) 743,831 (7,955,786)

Miscellaneous 3,747,057 4,680,871 18,952 3,747,057 4,699,823

Total Revenue 438,108,332 350,661,516 110,977,992 96,417,829 549,086,324 447,079,345
Expenses
General government 76,250,789 62,079,032 76,250,789 62,079,032
Judicial 9,490,006 9,395,021 9,490,006 9,395,021
Public safety 187,612,256 121,191,358 187,612,256 121,191,358
Public works 70,482,717 42,817,258 70,482,717 42,817,258
Community development & support 13,806,001 28,401,311 13,806,001 28,401,311
Culture & recreation 20,159,760 19,352,526 20,159,760 19,352,526
Urban redevelopment 4,015,348 4,154,809 4,015,348 4,154,809
Debt service:

Interest & fiscal charges 25,378,288 20,978,696 25,378,288 20,978,696
Sanitary sewer 64,505,805 60,135,606 64,505,805 60,135,606
Building permits 13,141,908 11,301,993 13,141,908 11,301,993

Total Expenses 407,195,165 308,370,011 77,647,713 71,437,599 484,842 B78 379,807,610
Change in net position 30,913,167 42,507,956 33,330,279 24,763,779 64,243,446 67,271,735
Transfers 112,000 216,451 (112,000) (216,451) - -
Net position, beginning of year 344,754,905 302,246,949 622,451,140 597,687,361 967,206,045 899,934,310
Net position, end of year $ 375,780,072 $ 344754905 H 6556694189 § 622451140 §$ 1,031,449491 $ 967,206,045
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Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total Program Revenues
General revenues:
Property taxes
Room taxes
Sales tax dedicated to debt
Other sales taxes
Consolidated tax revenue
Intergov. shared revenue, unrestricted
Investment income
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Miscellaneous
Total Revenue
Expenses
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Community development & support
Culture & recreation
Urban redevelopment
Debt service:
Interest & fiscal charges
Sanitary sewer
Building permits
Total Expenses
Change in net position
Transfers
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

Summary Statement of Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government

Change Change Change

$ 14,997,404 15.73% $ 5,273,812 6.08% $ 20,271,216 11%
984,020 4.09% 2,379,896 23798.96% 3,363,916 14%
43,200,428 237.95% (2,115,548) -13.85% 41,084,880 123%
59,181,852 43.03% 5,538,160 5.43% 64,720,012 27%
9,700,545 10.51% 9,700,545 11%
168,048 1.32% 168,048 1%
799,054 5.60% 799,054 6%
14,510 0.55% 14,510 1%
(1,052,322) -1.11% (1,052,322) -1%
(37,328) -0.51% (37,328) 1%
11,769,712 144.63% 8,177,897 -172.65% 19,947,609 -155%
7,836,559 -110.49% 863,058 8,699,617 -109%
(933,814) -19.95% (18,952)  -100.00% (952,766) -20%
87,446,816 24.94% 14,560,163 15.10% 102,006,979 23%
14,171,757 22.83% 14,171,757 23%
94,985 1.01% 94,985 1%
66,420,898 54.81% 66,420,898 55%
27,665,459 64.61% 27,665,459 65%
(14,595,310) -51.39% (14,595,310)  -51%
807,234 4.17% 807,234 4%
(139,461) -3.36% (139,461) -3%
4,399,592 20.97% 4,399,592 21%
4,370,199 7.27% 4,370,199 7%
1,839,915 16.28% 1,839,915 16%
98,825,154 32.05% 6,210,114 8.69% 105,035,268 28%
(11,594,789) -27.28% 8,566,500 34.59% (3,028,289) -5%

(104,451) -48.26% 104,451 -48.26% -
42 507,956 14.06% 24,763,779 4.14% 67,271,735 7%
$ 30,808,716 8.94% § 33,218,279 534% _$ 64,243,446 7%
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Governmental Activities

Program revenues are those revenues that are derived directly from the program itself or from parties outside of the City's
taxpayers or citizenry. They reduce the net cost of the function to be financed from the City's general revenues which
include property taxes and other taxes. The following chart compares the expenses for a particular program and the
revenues generated by the program to defray those expenses.

Program Revenue and Expenses - Governmental Activities
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As indicated in the chart, expenses exceeded program revenues for all functions with the exception of general government.
This indicates that services provided within those functions by the City are funded with tax dollars and other general
revenues rather than from direct charges for those services. The gaps between expenses and program revenues for the
public safety function and community development and support function are lessened due to the receipt of operating and
capital grants from federal and state governments. The culture and recreation and judicial functions both generate a certain
amount of charges for service that partially cover their operating expenses. Public Works receives contributed capital from
developers and at times from the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC), which is classified as capital grants and
contributions.

While the major source of debt payments for the recessed railway and downtown events center projects are sales taxes
and/or room taxes levied by ordinances specifically for these projects, because they are taxes by nature, they are reported
under general revenues rather than as program revenues. This also holds true for debt that is repaid from ad valorem taxes.

For governmental activities, charges for services became the largest revenue contributor at 25.03%, with property taxes a
close second at 23.32%. Consolidated taxes were the third, contributing 23.04% of all revenues for governmental activities.

11
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Charges for services rose by 15.73% compared to the prior fiscal year. The primary increases in revenue related to an
increase in business license revenues, an increase in electric franchise fees and an increase in EMS transport revenue.
Business licenses and EMS transport revenues increased because of an increase in demand combined with a CPl increase
in rates. Electric franchise fees increased because NV Energy increased rates and the winter for the fiscal year was colder
and longer than normally for the area.

The 4.09% increase in operating grants and contributions primarily relates recognizing revenues from ARPA funds that
were received in advance in 2021 and recorded in unearned revenue until the funds have been spent on approved projects.

The 237.95% increase in capital grants and contributions is the result of the dedication of streets, as well as new
construction in progress related to the infrastructure for the new Public Safety Center and the Moana Springs Aquatic
Center.

Property taxes had a 10.51% increase from the increased valuation of existing properties combined with additional homes
being completed during the fiscal year.

The slight decrease in consolidated tax and unrestricted intergovernmental shared revenues is related to the slowdown of
the local economy impacted from the increase in federal interest rates.

Interest and investment earnings saw a large increase due to the change in value of the City’s investment portfolio. As
interest rates change, the impact to unrealized gains and losses will increase and decrease depending on the City's current
portfolio position. During the current year interest rates were on the rise and the City’s investment portfolio was regularly
reviewed for value opportunities to take advantage of increasing rates.

Most governmental functions experienced an increase in overall expenses, primarily due to higher salaries and wages from
regularly scheduled merit increases, cost of living adjustments and adjustments for compensated absences accruals. The
City also experienced higher employee benefits as contributions to the State of Nevada’s Public Employees Retirement
System are based on salaries and wages, and the contribution rate increases were realized for all employee types.

The increases in expenses for the general government, public safety, and public works functions are the net difference of
increased salaries, benefits and number of employees at the City of Reno and the change in pension and OPEB valuation.

The 51.39% decrease in community development in the current year is because in the prior year there were many projects
that were expensed due to not meeting the City’s policy for capital assets. These expenses were not recorded as capital
assets and depreciated over their useful lives, so the expense for the prior year was higher than in the current year.

Interest and fiscal charges increased 20.97% due to the fees associated with the new $60 million bond issuance and
associated interest payments for the new bond.

The following chart provides a comparison of expenses by function/program as a percentage of total expenses for all
government activities. The public safety function (police, fire and dispatch) continues to pose the largest cost to the City.
The general government function is second for reasons previously explained. The public works function is third as
infrastructure depreciation will continue to keep public works as one of the most costly functions.

12
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Expenses by Function - Governmental Activities
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Business-type Activities

Business-type activities include sanitary sewer and building permit operations. The following chart presents each activity's
contribution to these totals.

Program Revenue and Expenses - Business-Type Activities
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Business-type activities realized a 5.43% increase in program revenue and a 15.10% increase in overall revenue. Much of
the increase is due to the increase in the valuation of investments and the increase from sewer user fees. Expenses
increased by 8.52%, resulting in 5.36% increase in net position for the business-type activities. Most of this increase in
expenses was due to the increase related to OPEB and pension adjustments as well as additional employees hired for
inspections and building permits.

The building permit function experienced a 20.10% decrease in overall building permits issued when compared to fiscal
year 2021/22. The decline puts building permits back to similar levels as fiscal year 2020 prior to the pandemic. This
translated into a 17.69% decrease in charges for service in the Building Permit Fund. The decrease in charges for services
also relates to waived fees to promote low income housing. Expenses were 15.90% higher than the previous year due to
higher salaries and wages from regularly scheduled merit increases, adjustments for cost of living and compensated
absence accruals, and additional employees to cover the additional work from development expansion.

The sanitary sewer function continues to be self-supporting, with program revenues exceeding operating expenses. This
allows the function to continue funding its capital needs without relying upon the issuance of debt except for the planned
Stead wastewater treatment plant expansion. Sewer connection fee revenue remained consistent, which is expected given
the decrease in building permits combined with connection fees being waived to promote low income housing and an
increase in connection fees. Expenses increased 7.13% and charges for services increased by 6.78% which contributed to
the increase in net position.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

The financial information presented thus far has focused on government wide statements prepared using the full accrual
method of accounting. As previously discussed, the focus of fund accounting is to measure inflows and outflows of current
resources. Since the focus in governmental fund accounting is on current resources, the governmental funds balance sheet
does not reflect long-term assets and liabilities. In particular, the governmental funds unassigned fund balance is useful in
measuring resources available for spending at fiscal year-end, and the proprietary fund unrestricted net position is an
important measure of working capital for use in providing services to City residents.

14
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Total Assets - Governmental Funds

2023 2022 Change
General Fund $ 70,133,861 % 61,353,319 8,780,542 14.31%
Streets Special Revenue Fund 40,229,034 42,774,410 (2,545,376) -5.95%
Cabela's Debt Service Fund 1,235,966 1,662,024 (426,058) -25.63%
Public Works Capital Projects Fund 136,682,141 108,977,115 27,705,026 25.42%
Non-major Governmental Funds 92,056,981 87,291,349 4,765,632 5.46%

Total Liabilities - Governmental Funds

2023 2022 Change
General Fund $ 14,232,249 $ 12,154,287 2,077,962 17.10%
Streets Special Revenue Fund 7,036,911 3,769,200 3,267,711 86.70%
Cabela's Debt Service Fund 16,424,488 14,449,238 1,975,250 13.67%
Public Works Capital Projects Fund 48,404,208 49,998,029 (1,593,821) -3.19%
Non-major Governmental Funds 3,213,434 5,905,213 (2,691,779) -45.58%

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

2023 2022 Change
General Fund $ 48,218,827 § 41,254,404 6,964,423 16.88%
Streets Special Revenue Fund 32,913,113 38,793,234 (5,880,121) -15.16%
Cabela's Debt Service Fund (15,188,522) (12,787,214) (2,401,308) 18.78%
Public Works Capital Projects Fund 88,277,933 58,979,086 29,298,847 49.68%
Non-major Governmental Funds 85,113,676 75,210,989 9,902,687 13.17%

Total Revenues - Governmental Funds

2023 2022 Change
General Fund $ 278,451,477 $ 257,655,124 20,796,353 8.07%
Streets Special Revenue Fund 34,551,988 32,116,317 2,435,671 7.58%
Cabela's Debt Service Fund 1,082,030 1,054,403 27,627 2.62%
Public Works Capital Projects Fund 21,378,639 5,003,669 16,374,970 327.26%
Non-major Governmental Funds 61,505,450 55,579,905 5,925,545 10.66%

Total Expenditures - Government Funds

2023 2022 Change
General Fund $ 265828670 $ 230,520,516 35,308,154 15.32%
Streets Special Revenue Fund 40,342,109 27,824,776 12,517,333 44.99%
Cabela's Debt Service Fund 3,483,338 3,383,263 100,075 2.96%
Public Works Capital Projects Fund 64,848,055 28,119,779 36,728,276 130.61%
Non-major Governmental Funds 53,458,683 51,986,283 1,472,400 2.83%

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - Governmental Funds

2023 2022 Change
General Fund $ (5,658,384) $ (37,169,902) 31,511,518 -84.78%
Streets Special Revenue Fund (90,000) (101,329) 11,329 -11.18%
Cabela's Debt Service Fund - - - 0.00%
Public Works Capital Projects Fund 72,768,264 41,753,103 31,015,161 74.28%
Non-major Governmental Funds 1,855,920 3,077,969 (1,222,049) -39.70%

Of the above fund balances, $3 million is categorized as nonspendable, $104 million as restricted, $105.2 million as
assigned, and $27 million as unassigned.
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Major Governmental Funds

The primary operating fund of the City is the General Fund. At the end of the fiscal year presented, its total fund balance
was $48.2 million, an increase of 16.88% over the previous fiscal year. Unassigned fund balance increased by 22.63% in
the current year to $42.2 million which is due to increased salary and benefits for City employees; transfers to capital
improvement funds for existing projects; netted against higher than anticipated property tax revenues, franchise fees and
business licensing activity. One of the City’s goals is to maintain a reserve in the general fund between 8.30% and 25.00%
of the prior fiscal year's total operating expenditures. As of June 30, 2023, this calculation yielded a reserve of 15.92%.

The Streets Special Revenue Fund utilizes property tax overrides, motor vehicle fuel taxes and water toll fees to maintain
arterial and neighborhood streets, as well as to perform neighborhood street rehabilitation projects. Fund balance
decreased due to moderate revenue growth in property taxes as well as in excavation/encroachment fees, which are
construction growth driven, and motor vehicle taxes based on increased driving as more of the population returned to work
offset with increases in salary expenses and additional outside services for street repairs and maintenance.

The Cabela’s Debt Service Fund is responsible for the payment of principal and interest on the outstanding 2007A and
2007B Sales Tax Increment (Cabela’s) Bonds related to the construction of infrastructure assets installed as part of the
construction of the Cabela’s retail store. These bonds are paid solely from sales tax revenue collected in the City of Reno,
Nevada Tourism Improvement District No. 2006-1 (Boomtown/Cabela’s). Revenues have been insufficient to make timely
debt service payments, causing matured principal and interest payable balances to rise, resulting in a negative fund balance.
Prior to fiscal year 2019/2020 this debt service fund was included as part of the City Debt Service Fund.

The Public Works Capital Project Fund met the criteria for a major fund again this fiscal year due to the receipt of ARPA
funds, which is reported as unearned revenue until such time as a formal, qualified spending plan is adopted by the City
Council.

Non-major governmental funds consist primarily of special revenue and capital projects funds. Significant activities include
the HUD and State housing grant fund created for the purpose of providing better housing, improved living conditions, and
economic opportunities for persons of lower income; collecting room taxes dedicated to improving parks and recreation
facilities and to promote tourism; the collection and expenditure of certain court collection and administrative fees to enhance
judicial programs; and the maintenance of and repairs and improvements to City owned facilities.

Maijor Proprietary Funds

The Sanitary Sewer Fund accounts for sewer services provided to Reno’s citizens and some residents of Washoe County.
The unrestricted net position at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $189.1 million. Operating revenues were slightly
higher at 55.19% from prior fiscal year level. Higher charges for service due to a modest sewer rate increase, the number
of active sewer accounts and investment earnings were up from the prior fiscal year. Operating expenses increased 8.0%
due to increased salaries and benefits. Capital projects increased during the year to work towards completion of the sewer
plant expansion.

The City contributed $1.7 million to the Truckee Meadows Reclamation Facility for capital improvements, and its share of
the joint venture’s loss was $5.2 million, which was made up primarily of depreciation expense.

The Building Permit Fund accounts for resources provided by the issuance of building permit fees and performing plan
checks/reviews related to new construction and remodeling/structure rehabilitation projects. Operationally, the fund’s
revenues were 17.69% lower than fiscal year 2021/22 levels due to slowing growth in the various categories of building
permits issued. Operating expenses increased by 16.67% due to increased salaries and benefits, additional employees
and due to an adjustment to pension and OPEB.
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City of Reno, Nevada
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Budgetary Highlights for General Fund

Summary of Selected General Fund Budgety to Actual Information

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance
Total Revenues $ 266,126,024 $ 278,624,327 $ 278,451,477 3 (172,850)
Total Expenditures 254,813,410 282,101,984 265,828,670 16,273,314
Total Fund Balance 44,454,406 36,773,002 48,218,827 11,445,825

The functions represent the legal level of budgetary control. Budgeted revenues increased for reasons discussed previously.
The expenditure budget for the general government function was increased to address the additional equipment purchased
by the police department related to officer safety and retirement payouts for employees who left the organization in the
current year. The public safety function specifically received budget increases related to grant-funded overtime and services
and supplies and for payouts of compensated absences/leave balances upon retirement. Other department’s budgets were
increased modestly for various reasons. However, due to the conservative spending measures taken, every function’s
actual expenditures were less than their respective final budgets with the exception of public safety which went over budget
in salaries and benefits due to unforeseen overtime costs and payouts of compensated absences/leave upon retirement.

Capital Assets Activity

At June 30, 2023, the City had total capital assets net of depreciation and amortization of $1,513.6 million. This represents
a 6.13% increase when compared to the prior year.

Major capital investment activities for fiscal year included:

e $48.9 million increase in street infrastructure before depreciation, $32.0 million of which was either contributed by
developers or annexed and $4.8 million of which was capitalized staff expenses.

e $65.7 million in new construction in progress including the Public Safety Center and Moana Springs Pool, with
completion of $14.1 million of projects previously in construction in progress.

e $3.7 million in new construction in progress related to the Reno/Stead Water Reclamation Facility which should be
completed and placed into service in the subsequent fiscal year.

e $28.2 million in new construction in progress in sewer line and storm drain rehabilitation and lift station
improvement/replacement projects.

Additional information on capital assets is presented in Note 4 in the Notes to the Financial Statements section of this report.

Long-term Debt Activity

Bonds and notes payable outstanding at June 30, 2023, totaled $518.3 million, net of premiums and discounts, a 10.08%
increase when compared fo the prior year. Debt for governmental activities represents 88.18% of total debt outstanding,
with debt related to business type activities accounting for 11.82% of the total debt outstanding.

At June 30, 2023, the City had $148.5 million of general obligation debt outstanding that is subject to the legal debt limit of
$2,079.3 million.

The City maintains an A1 rating from Moody’s and an AA- rating from Standard and Poor’s for its non-Sewer related general
obligation bonds.

Additional information on long-term debt activity is presented in Note 6 in the Notes to the Financial Statements section of
this report.
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City of Reno, Nevada

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Known Economic Factors

For the first three months of fiscal year 2023/24, intergovernmental consolidated tax revenues have risen 2.86% over the
first three months of fiscal year 2022/23. For June of 2023, statewide taxable sales were up 2.8% over June of 2022; whereas
in Washoe County, taxable sales increased 0.5% for the same period. For the fiscal year as a whole, statewide taxable sales
and Washoe County taxable sales for 2022/23 were 6.3% and 0.9%, respectively, higher over 2021/22 levels.

In June of 2023 the unemployment rate in the Reno-Sparks MSA was 4.5%, which is slightly lower than the state
unemployment rate of 5.4% and higher than the national rate of 3.6%. This rate is significantly lower than the all-time high
of 20.4% experienced in April of 2020, which was the first full month after the pandemic shutdown was instituted on March 17
by Nevada Governor Sisolak. The Reno MSA unemployment was 3.3% for the same time period one year ago.

The annual job growth rate for the Reno metropolitan area between June 2023 and June 2022 was 4.2% compared to the
(8.6%) growth rate between June 2021 and June 2020. This percentage reflects a job recovery of 10,500. Statewide, job
growth between June 2021 and June 2020 was 6.6%, or 90,400 jobs, with food service, hospitality, and leisure industries
showing the strongest growth.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the financial activity and condition of the City to all having
such an interest in the City. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to:

City of Reno Finance Department
One East First Street

P. O. Box 1900

Reno, Nevada, 89505.
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City of Reno, Nevada
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2023

Primary Government

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash, cash equivalents and investments
Cash, cash equivalents and investments, restricted
Receivables:

Accounts

Leases

Taxes

Special assessments

Accrued interest on receivables
Due from other governments
Notes receivable
Inventories
Prepaid items
Property held for resale
Internal balances

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Joint Venture in TMWRF
Non-depreciated capital assets
Construction in progress
Land
Water rights
Depreciable capital assets, net
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery, equipment and software
Infrastructure
Art and historical treasures
Subscription software
Right of use lease asset
Total noncurrent assets
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

20

Deferred loss on debt refunding activity
Deferred amounts related to pensions
Deferred amounts related to OPEB

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Government
Activities

Business-type

Activities

Total

$ 340,845,107

$ 130,752,656

$ 471,597,763

- 54,662,175 54,662,175
11,910,300 13,052,792 24,963,092
6,588,746 - 6,588,746
874,296 - 874,296
4,180,600 4,180,600
1,569,342 £ 1,569,342
31,229,310 2,725,012 33,954,322
- 259,105 259,105
1,471,617 421,219 1,892,836
2,647,892 66,429 2,714,321
1,041,209 - 1,041,209
{544,403) 544,403 -
401,814,016 202,483,791 604,297,807
- 83,340,822 83,340,822
72,966,926 108,162,024 181,128,950
148,063,471 12,774,426 160,837,897
1,125,000 1,812,114 2,937,114
144,929,533 5,891,790 150,821,323
244,384,635 347,810,409 592,195,044
38,003,521 9,599,971 47,603,492
368,471,763 368,471,763
2,886,283 2,886,283
259,883 - 259,883
2,109,376 4,345,027 6,454,403
1,023,200,391 573,736,583 1,596,936,974
1,425,014,407 776,220,374 2,201,234,781
17,960,925 - 17,960,925
122,378,891 12,311,474 134,690,365
990,119 54,379 1,044,498
141,329,935 12,365,853 153,695,788

See accompanying notes




City of Reno, Nevada
Statement of Net Position (Continued)
June 30, 2023

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Contracts payable
Due to other governments
Deposits
Other liabilities
Unearned revenue
Long-term liabilities due within one year:
Bonds and notes payable
Compensated absences
Self-insurance liability
Interest payable
Leases and subscription service liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term liabilities due in more than one year:

Bonds and notes payable

Compensated absences

Self-insurance liability

Interest payable

Net post employment benefits other than pensions

Net pension liability

Lease and subsctiption service liabilities
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions
Deferred amounts related to OPEB
Deferred amounts related to leases
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Capital projects
Debt service
Public safety program
Cultural and development programs
Risk claims
Other government programs
Unrestricted (deficit)
TOTAL NET POSITION

See accompanying notes.

Primary Government

Government Business-type
Activities Activities Total
10,437,427 391,052 10,828,479
8,720,708 - 8,720,708
19,621,302 8,126,118 27,747,420
128,811 3,399,865 3,528,676
2,288,857 11,241,187 13,530,044
433,724 828,327 1,262,051
34,997,950 884,040 35,881,990
15,468,371 8,321,724 23,790,095
19,071,276 1,698,283 20,769,559
9,921,117 - 9,921,117
6,895,100 450,847 7,345,947
375,292 122,207 497,499
128,359,935 35,463,650 163,823,585
440,319,708 54,215,490 494,535,198
10,931,068 913,487 11,844,555
73,171,249 - 73,171,249
35,802,331 = 35,802,331
117,669,356 3,641,105 121,310,461
320,027,455 32,272,090 352,299,545
1,991,293 4,216,848 6,208,141
999,912,460 95,259,020 1,095,171,480
1,128,272,395 130,722,670 1,258,995,065
2,810,476 279,434 3,089,910
53,068,886 1,914,703 54,983,589
6,412,513 = 6,412,513
62,291,875 2,194,137 64,486,012
607,909,984 423,519,492 1,031,429,476
36,257,528 30,466,787 66,724,315
40,156,799 = 40,156,799
2,004,868 - 2,004,868
2,942,261 - 2,942,261
23,934,513 - 23,934,513
22,730,877 - 22,730,877
(360,156,758) 201,683,140 (158,473,618)

S 375,780,072

$ 655,669,419

$ 1,031,449,491
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City of Reno, Nevada
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Governmental activities

General government

Judicial

Public safety

Public works

Culture and recreation

Community Development & Support

Urban redevelopment

Debt Service
Interest Payments
Administrative/fiscal charges
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities
Sanitary Sewer
Building Permit

Total business-type activities

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

22

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital Grants
Charges for Grants and and Governmental Business-type
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
$ 76,250,789 $ 86,136,193 § 12,355,236 - S 22,240640 § - $ 22,240,640
9,490,006 1,650,964 594,289 - (7,244,753) . (7,244,753)
187,612,256 9,592,963 4,320,611 13,947 (173,684,735) - (173,684,735)
70,482,717 6,271,114 240,101 48,369,990 (15,601,512} - (15,601,512)
20,159,760 4,106,130 690,604 7,361,974 (8,001,052) - (8,001,052)
13,806,001 1,116,723 6,723,564 5,610,100 {(355,614) - (355,614)
4,015,348 1,448,579 106,687 - {2,460,082) . (2,460,082)
25,061,641 - - - (25,061,641) - (25,061,641)
316,647 - - - (316,647) - (316,647)
407,195,165 110,322,666 25,031,092 61,356,011 (210,485,396) = (210,485,396)
64,505,805 81,391,470 2,389,896 13,156,421 - 32,431,982 32,431,982
13,141,908 10,598,923 - - - (2,542,985) (2,542,985)
77,647,713 91,990,393 2,389,896 13,156,421 - 29,888,997 29,888,997
S 484,842,878 $ 202,313,059 § 27,420,988 74,512,432 (210,485,396) 29,888,997 (180,596,399)
GENERAL REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes 101,958,471 - 101,958,471
Sales taxes restricted for debt service 15,058,567 - 15,058,567
Other sales taxes 2,662,465 - 2,662,465
Room Taxes 12,873,390 - 12,873,390
Unrestricted intergovernmental consolidated tax revenues 100,722,789 - 100,722,789
Unrestricted investment and interest earnings {losses) (730,893) 1,216,001 485,108
Change in fair value of investments 4,362,886 2,225,281 6,588,167
Miscellaneous 3,747,057 - 3,747,057
Gain on sale of capital assets 743,831 - 743,831
Transfers {net) 112,000 (112,000) -
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS 241,510,563 3,329,282 244,839,845
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 31,025,167 33,218,279 64,243,446
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 344,754,905 622,451,140 967,206,045

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

$ 375,780,072

$ 655,669,419  $1,031,449,491

See accompanying notes.
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City of Reno, Nevada
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
June 30, 2023

Cabela's Sales

Tax Increment Public Works Total
Streets Special Debt Service Capital Projects ~ Total Nonmajor Governmental
General Fund Revenue Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments S 30,482,067 $ 36,215,607 $ 1,061,249 $ 133,085,132 $ 77,982,633 S 278,826,688
Accounts receivable 7,953,863 783,302 - 250 601,680 9,339,095
Lease receivable 6,588,746 - - = - 6,588,746
Accrued interest 1,510,489 - - - 59,510 1,569,999
Due from other governments 19,891,077 1,781,628 174,717 3,104,460 6,277,430 31,229,312
Taxes receivable 617,841 174,896 - - 81,558 874,295
Special assessment current - - - - 1,581,675 1,581,675
Special assessments delinquent 11,508 - - - 2,070 13,578
Special assessments deferred - - - - 2,585,345 2,585,345
Due from other funds 1,444,634 - - - - 1,444,634
Advances to other funds - 310,007 - - - 310,007
Inventories 667,380 482,844 - - - 1,150,224
Prepaid items 966,256 480,750 - - 861,848 2,308,854
Property held for resale - - - - 1,041,209 1,041,209
Notes receivable, net - - - 492,299 982,023 1,474,322
Total assets S 70,133,861 $ 40,229,034 $ 1,235,966 S 136,682,141 S 92,056,981 $ 340,337,983
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable S 2,435,576 s 1,024,930 $ - S 632,003 S 2,142,402 S 6,234,911
Accrued salaries and benefits 8,720,709 - - - - 8,720,709
Contracts and retained percentage payable 581,964 5,462,545 - 13,085,387 196,607 19,326,503
Accrued interest payable - - - - 45,233 45,233
Due to other funds - 361,488 - - 38,673 400,161
Due to other governments 64,497 40 - - 64,274 128,811
Deposits 1,991,416 187,908 & - 109,532 2,288,856
Other liabilities 433,566 - - - - 433,566
Advances from other funds - - - - 310,007 310,007
Unearned Revenue 4,521 - - 34,686,818 306,706 34,998,045
Interest payable - - 5,534,488 - - 5,534,488
Debt obligations payable - - 10,890,000 - - 10,890,000
Total liabilities 14,232,249 7,036,911 16,424,488 48,404,208 3,213,434 89,311,290
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue, property taxes 617,841 174,896 - - 81,558 874,295
Unavailable revenue, special assessments 11,508 - - - 2,630,918 2,642,426
Unavailable revenue, other 7,053,436 104,114 - - 1,017,395 8,174,945
Total deferred inflows of resources 7,682,785 279,010 - - 3,729,871 11,691,666
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 21,915,034 7,315,921 16,424,488 48,404,208 6,943,305 101,002,956

23 See accompanying notes.




City of Reno, Nevada
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds (Continued)
June 30, 2023

Cabela's Sales

Tax Increment Pubtic Works Total
Streets Special Debt Service Capital Projects ~ Total Nonmajor Governmental
General Fund Revenue Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
FUND BALANCES {DEFICITS)
Nonspendable
Inventories 667,380 482,843 - » - 1,150,223
Prepaid items 966,256 28,021 - - 861,848 1,856,125
Restricted
Capital projects - - - 36,257,528 - 36,257,528
Debt service - - - - 40,156,799 40,156,799
Court programs 36,033 - - - - 36,033
Cultural & community devpt programs - - - - 2,942,261 2,942,261
Fire, police and other public safety programs 742,447 - - . 1,262,421 2,004,868
Other government programs 104,105 - E - 3,021,182 3,125,287
Capital improvement projects 22,879 771,294 - < 18,775,384 19,569,557
Assigned
Capital improvement projects - 31,630,955 = 52,020,405 27,791 83,679,151
Fire, police and other public safety programs - - - - 165,474 165,474
Other government programs 3,473,880 - - - 17,900,516 21,374,396
Unassigned 42,205,847 - (15,188,522} - - 27,017,325
Total fund balances (deficits) 48,218,827 32,913,113 (15,188,522) 88,277,933 85,113,676 239,335,027

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits) S 70,133,861 S 40,229,034 5  1,235966 S 136,682,141 S 92,056,981 S 340,337,983

See accompanying notes. 24




City of Reno, Nevada
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds to the

Statement of Net Position — Governmental Activities
June 30, 2023

FUND BALANCE, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Capital assets used in Governmental Activities are not financial resources;
and, therefore, are not reported in Governmental Funds:

Capital Assets S
Less Accumulated Depreciation

S 239,335,027

2,143,983,318
(1,135,924,937)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period; and therefore, are not reported in government funds:
Bonds, notes, and installment purchase agreements
Lease liability
Subscription service liability
Unamortized premiums and discounts
Unamortized deferred refunding charges
Compensated absences payable
Net Postemployment benefits other than pensions
Net pension liability
Deferred outflows related to other post-employment benefits
Deferred inflows related to other post-employment benefits
Deferred outflows related to pensions
Deferred inflows related to pensions

1,008,058,381

(433,181,214)
(232,529)
(2,134,056)
(11,716,865)
17,960,925
(29,821,525)
(117,274,752)
(316,909,115)
984,225
(52,861,381)
121,189,277
(2,783,476)

Other liabilities are not due and payable in the current period; and, therefore, are
not reported in governmental funds:
Interest payable

(826,780,486)

(37,093,711)

Unavailable revenue represents amounts that were not available to fund current
expenditures; and, therefore, are not reported in governmental funds:
Unavailable revenue

(37,093,711)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain

activities to individual funds:

Internal service fund assets and liabilities included in governmental activities
in the statement of net position

Internal services fund balance receivable from business-type activities from
cumulative prior years' activities

Internal service fund balance receivable from business-type activities for
current year activity

TOTAL NET POSITION FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVIES AS SHOWN ON THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

25

5,279,155
5,279,155
(11,526,232)
(804,137)
(687,925)
(13,018,294)

$ 375,780,072

See accompanying notes.




City of Reno, Nevada
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Cabela's Sales

Tax Increment Public Works Total
Streets Special Debt Service Capital Projects  Total Nonmajor ~ Governmental
General Fund Revenue Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 70905726 $ 22,231,338 § - $ - 5 8,489,348 $ 101,626,412
Room and construction taxes - - - - 16,127,041 16,127,041
Special assessments 3,033,322 - - - 1,674,430 4,707,752
Franchise fees 37,349,096 3,189,675 - - S 40,538,771
Licenses and permits 31,537,462 501,467 - 429,235 170,051 32,638,215
Intergovernmental consolidated tax revenue 93,449,652 - - - - 93,449,652
Intergovernmental SCCR (AB104) taxes 6,013,848 - - - - 6,013,848
Intergovernmental marijuana fees 272,253 - - - - 272,253
Motor vehicle taxes - 7,362,154 - - 106,687 7,468,841
Intergovernmental gaming licenses 1,259,289 - - - - 1,259,289
Intergovernmental, other 62,082 - - - 816,457 878,539
Dedicated sales tax revenues 2,662,465 - - - - 2,662,465
Grants and contributions 4,129,853 236,609 1,043,167 15,623,901 27,819,005 48,852,535
Charges for services 20,842,424 - - - 18,745 20,861,169
Fines and forfeitures 3,291,391 5,044 - - 86,426 3,382,861
Private grants and contributions 310,344 = - 4,525,669 896,000 5,732,013
Interest & investment earnings 668,687 461,691 38,863 36,200 1,413,513 2,618,954
Change in fair value of investments (299,154) 304,326 . (209,434) 143,368 (60,894)
Rents and royalties 406,446 - - 972,621 1,471,857 2,850,924
Reimbursements and restitution 2,484,382 148,559 - 447 521,979 3,155,367
Miscellaneous 71,909 111,125 - - 1,750,543 1,933,577
TOTAL REVENUES 278,451,477 34,551,988 1,082,030 21,378,639 61,505,450 396,969,584
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 37,963,141 - - 4,531,157 1,955,931 44,450,229
ludicial 8,950,682 - - - 68,682 9,019,364
Public safety 170,442,767 - - 6,437,944 73,968 176,954,679
Public works 10,356,250 24,512,516 - 979,031 481,727 36,329,524
Community Development & Support 5,099,243 - - 100,744 8,403,175 13,603,162
Culture and recreation 14,019,130 - - 183,256 14,397 14,216,783
Urban redevelopment - - - - 2,452,224 2,452,224
Non-Departmental 16,690,663 - - - - 16,690,663
Debt service
Principal retirement 688,457 - 2,610,000 E 16,175,626 19,474,083
Interest . - 869,238 - 16,758,772 17,628,010
Administrative charges - - 4,100 - 344,812 348,912
Debt issuance costs = = - - 1,959 1,959
Capital Outlay
General government 798,236 - - 435,892 101,080 1,335,208
Public safety 695,393 - - 26,556,156 46,287 27,297,836
Public works 45,138 15,829,593 - 7,179,784 534,429 23,588,944
Culture and recreation 63,230 - - 18,444,091 2,733,719 21,241,040
Community Development & Suppaort 16,340 - - - 3,311,895 3,328,235
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 265,828,670 40,342,109 3,483,338 64,848,055 53,458,683 427,960,855
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 12,622,807 {5,790,121) (2,401,308) (43,469,416) 8,046,767 (30,991,271)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 60,717 - - 64,081 - 124,798
Issuance of debt 5,912,631 - - - 60,000,000 65,912,631
Premium on bonds issued = - - - 2,726,371 2,726,371
Transfers in 2,916,000 - - 72,840,183 5,255,633 81,011,816
Transfers out {14,547,732) {90,000) - {136,000) (66,126,084) (80,899,816)
Total other financing sources (uses) (5,658,384) (90,000) - 72,768,264 1,855,920 68,875,800
Net change in fund balances 6,964,423 (5,880,121) (2,401,308) 29,298,848 9,902,687 37,884,529
Fund balances - beginning 41,254,404 38,793,234 (12,787,214) 58,979,085 75,210,989 201,450,498
Fund balances - ending $ 48,218,827 $ 32,913,113 $ (15,188,522) $ 88,277,933 S 85,113,676 S 239,335,027

See accompanying notes. 26




City of Reno, Nevada
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds to the Statement of

Activities — Governmental Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES FOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS AS SHOWN ON THE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDIUTRES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is capitalized and depreciated over
estimated useful lives:
Expenditures for capital assets
Less current year depreciation
Deposition of capital assets
Expense for staff engineering capitalized as part of infrastructure capital assets
Expense of prior year construction in progress

Revenues in the Statement of Activities, which do not provide current financial
resources, are not reported as revenues in governmental funds:
Change in unavailable revenue
Capital contributions

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of
debt principal is an expenditure in government funds, but the repayment
reduces liabilities in the statement of net position. This is the amount by which
repayments exceeded debt issued:

Capitalized Leases

Premiums from issuance of debt
Debt principal payments

Debt issuance proceeds

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds:

Change in post-employment benefits other than pensions
Change in net pension liability

Change in compensated absences

Amortization of deferred refunding charges

Change of debt premiums and discounts

Change in accrued interest

Inte) activities to individual funds:
Internal service fund change in net position included in governmental activities
in the statement of activities
The internal service funds change in net position related to business- type activities

CHANGES IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

27

76,782,489
(52,557,032)
(584,819)

4,803,832
(20,856)

(1,885,929)
32,045,755

296,052
(2,726,371)
19,474,083
(65,912,631)

14,310,780
(9,973,091)
(2,132,673)
(8,552,693)
(2,020,059)
3,211,944

(10,730,218)
(687,925)

S 37,884,529

28,423,614

30,159,826

(48,868,867)

(5,155,792)

(11,418,143)

S 31,025,167

See accompanying notes.




City of Reno, Nevada
Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2023

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Total Enterprise Internal Service
Sanitary Sewer Building Permit Funds Funds
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash, cash equivalents and investments S 108,213,194 $ 22,539,462 S 130,752,656 $ 61,723,419
Receivables:
Accounts Receivable 13,044,616 8,176 13,052,792 1,096,225
Due from other governments 2,725,012 - 2,725,012 -
Inventories 421,219 - 421,219 321,393
Prepaid expenses 53,493 12,936 66,429 339,040
Restricted assets
Cash, cash equivalents and investments 54,662,175 - 54,662,175 295,000
Notes receivable, net 259,105 - 259,105 -
Total current assets 179,378,814 22,560,574 201,939,388 63,775,077
Noncurrent assets
Investment in Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility 83,340,822 - 83,340,822 -
Capital assets
Land 12,774,426 - 12,774,426 -
Water rights 1,812,114 - 1,812,114
Buildings and building improvements 12,275,043 2,108,516 14,383,559 -
Improvements other than buildings 566,702,912 - 566,702,912 -
Machinery, equipment and software 12,610,397 77,383 12,687,780 37,676,561
Construction in progress 108,162,024 - 108,162,024 -
Less accumulated depreciation (229,875,286) (596,795) (230,472,081) (22,534,551)
Right of use lease assets 4,655,386 - 4,655,386 -
Less accumulated amortization (310,359) - (310,359) -
Total noncurrent assets 572,147,479 1,589,104 573,736,583 15,142,010
Total assets 751,526,293 24,149,678 775,675,971 78,917,087
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 7,508,954 4,802,520 12,311,474 1,191,174
Deferred amounts related to OPEB 33,261 21,118 54,379 4,334
Total deferred outflows of resources 7,542,215 4,823,638 12,365,853 1,195,508

See accompanying notes. 28




City of Reno, Nevada

Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Funds (Continued)

June 30, 2023

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Contracts payable

Contracts payable from restricted assets

Interest payable
Self-insurance liability
Compensated absences
Due to other governments
Deposits

Due to other funds

Debt obligations

Other liabilities

Unearned Revenue

Leases and subscription service liabilities

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Self-insurance liability

Postemployment benefits other than pensions

Net Pension Liability
Compensated absences payable
Debt obligations payable
Lease liability

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred amounts related to pensions

Deferred amounts related to OPEB

Total deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities and deferred infiows of resources

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Capital improvement projects
Claims
Unrestricted
Total net position
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Business-type Activities

Governmental
Activities

Total Enterprise

Internal Service

Sanitary Sewer Bullding Permit Funds Funds
278,887 112,165 391,052 4,504,379
6,186,012 10,450 6,196,462 17,000
1,929,656 - 1,929,656
450,847 450,847 -
- - - 13,076,930
1,079,857 618,426 1,698,283 105,002
3,376,422 23,443 3,399,865 -
11,241,187 - 11,241,187 -
586,827 360,832 947,659 96,813
5,755,694 - 5,755,694 -
828,330 - 828,330
884,040 - 884,040 -
122,207 - 122,207 -
32,719,966 1,125,316 33,845,282 17,800,124
= - - 70,015,436
2,227,103 1,414,002 3,641,105 394,604
19,683,234 12,588,856 32,272,090 3,118,340
601,142 312,345 913,487 75,817
56,781,520 - 56,781,520 -
4,216,848 - 4,216,848 -
83,509,847 14,315,203 97,825,050 73,604,197
116,229,813 15,440,519 131,670,332 91,404,321
170,431 109,003 279,434 27,000
1,171,139 743,564 1,914,703 207,505
1,341,570 852,567 2,194,137 234,505
117,571,383 16,293,086 133,864,469 91,638,826
421,930,388 1,589,104 423,519,492 15,142,010
30,466,787 30,466,787 -
- - - 23,600,987
189,099,952 11,091,126 200,191,078 (50,269,228)
5 641,497,127 12,680,230 654,177,357 {(11,526,231)
Difference between business-type adjustments to assets and liabilities. 1,492,062
Net position of business-type activities 655,669,419

See accompanying notes.




City of Reno, Nevada

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position —
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Business-type Activities Governmental Activities
Sanitary Sewer Building Permit Total Enterprise Funds internal Service Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services H 78,213,606 S 10,598,923 $ 88,812,529 $ 56,491,005
Licenses and permits 400,210 - 400,210 -
Fines and forfeitures 2,307,472 - 2,307,472 -
Miscellaneous 470,182 - 470,182 4,566,156
Total operating revenues 81,391,470 10,598,923 91,990,393 61,057,161
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 9,965,055 6,376,368 16,341,423 1,694,561
Employee benefits 4,027,571 3,268,464 7,296,035 589,377
Services and supplies 15,993,076 3,562,782 19,555,858 68,255,099
Joint sewer plant 14,467,557 - 14,467,557 -
Loss on asset disposal 266,356 35,113 301,469
Depreciation and amortization 14,122,594 119,466 14,242,060 3,516,128
Total operating expenses 58,842,209 13,362,193 72,204,402 74,065,165
Operating income (loss) 22,549,261 (2,763,270) 19,785,991 (13,008,004}
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings 1,927,777 297,504 2,225,281 823,581
Change in fair value of investments 1,004,890 211,111 1,216,001 250,352
Gain on asset disposal - - - 436,163
Interest and fiscal charges (957,916) - (957,916) -
Net loss from Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility (5,588,612) - (5,588,612) -
Capital contributions - - - -
Grants and contributions 2,389,896 - 2,389,896 -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses} {1,223,965) 508,615 (715,350) 1,510,096
Income {loss) before capital contributions and transfers 21,325,296 (2,254,655} 19,070,641 (11,497,908)
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS IN (OUT)
Connection charges 11,064,442 - 11,064,442 -
Contribution of assets 2,091,979 - 2,091,979 767,690
Transfers out (112,000) - (112,000) -
Change in net position 34,369,717 (2,254,655) 32,115,062 (10,730,218)
Total net position - beginning 607,127,410 14,934,885 622,062,295 (796,013)
Total net position - ending S 641,497,127 S 12,680,230 S 654,177,357 S (11,526,231)
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds 1,103,217
Changes in net position of buisness-type activities $ 33,218,279

See accompanying notes. 30




, City of Reno, Nevada
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Total Enterprise Internal Service
Sanitary Sewer Building Permit Funds Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers 5 82,649,573 S 10,608,774 $ 93,258,347 § 54,580,502
Cash from interfund - - - 2,260,399
Cash Other 1,735,732 - 1,735,732 4,566,155
Payments to suppliers (29,332,682) (2,270,693) (31,603,375) (48,885,214)
Payments to employees (12,817,853) (8,389,236) (21,207,089) (2,160,814)
Cash payments for interfund goods and services (3,040,329) (1,425,844) (4,466,173) (1,116,388)
Cash payments for interfund employee benefits (961,510) (535,724) (1,497,234) (157,869)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 38,232,931 (2,012,723) 36,220,208 9,086,771
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers out (112,000) - (112,000) -
Cash received from grants 2,389,896 - 2,389,896 -
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 2,277,896 - 2,277,896 -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (37,619,847) - (37,619,847) (4,028,449)
Proceeds received from disposal of capital assets - - - 436,163
Principal payments on debt 3,290,773 - -
Proceeds from issuance of debt (5,595,843) - (5,595,843) -
Payments of interest and fiscal charges (869,821) - (869,821) -
Connection charges 11,064,442 - 11,064,442 -
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (29,730,296) - (29,730,296) (3,592,286) |
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation facility (5,800,648) - (5,800,648) -
Investment income received 2,259,463 349,611 2,609,074 942,704
Change in fair value of cash equivalent investments 1,004,890 211,111 1,216,001 250,352
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (2,536,295) 560,722 (1,975,573) 1,193,056
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8,244,236 (1,452,001) 6,792,235 6,687,541
Balances - beginning of year 154,631,133 23,991,463 178,622,596 55,330,878
Balances - end of the year $ 162,875,369 S 22,539,462 $ 185,414,831 $ 62,018,419

31 See accompanying notes.




City of Reno, Nevada
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities:
Operating Income {loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on asset disposal
Right to use lease asset
Changes in assets and liabilities
Customer Receivables
Due from other governments
Inventory
Prepaid items
Accounts Payable - Interfund
Accounts Payable - Other
Accounts Payable - Supplier
Due to other governments
Contracts and retention payable
Deposits
Compensated absences
Self insurance liability
Postemployment benefits other than pensions
Net pension liability
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities
Change in fair value of cash equivalent investments
Contribution of capital assets
Total noncash investing, capital and financing activities

See accompanying notes.

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities

Total Enterprise

Internal Service

Sanitary Sewer Building Permit Funds Funds
S 22,549,261 S (2,763,270) S 19,785,991 § (13,008,004)
14,122,594 119,466 14,242,060 3,516,128
266,356 = 266,356 -
(196,173) (196,173)

524,284 9,853 534,137 349,898

428,438 - 428,438 -
(61,919) = (61,919) {189,196)

(7,213) < (7,213) 51,845

586,828 360,832 947,660 3,649,839

75,928 (27,720) 48,208 =

(144,694) 38,322 (106,372) -

(586,686) (32,158) (618,844)

(1,022,708) (205,342) (1,228,050} 17,000
2,072,200 - 2,072,200 <

458,521 231,326 689,847 70,002

- - - 14,820,819
(2,643,314) (1,317,436) (3,960,750) (473,568)
1,811,228 1,573,404 3,384,632 282,008

S 38,232,931 S (2,012,723) $ 36,220,208 S 9,086,771
5 1,004,890 S 211,111 § 1,216,001 S 250,352
1,825,621 - 1,825,621 767,690

S 2,830,511 S 211,111 S 3,041,622 S 1,018,042
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City of Reno, Nevada
Statement of Net Position — Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2023

ASSETS
Cash, cash equivalents and investments
Special assessments receivable
Total Cash

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Debt obligations payable
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Restricted for:
Other governments and organizations
Total net position

33

Other Post- Special Assessment

Employment Benefit District Custodial
Trust Fund Fund

S 25,951,629 S 6,401,211

- 310

25,951,629 6,401,521

25,951,629 6,401,521

- 109

- 285,000

- 285,109

25,951,629 6,116,412

$ 25,951,629  $ 6,116,412

See accompanying notes.




City of Reno, Nevada
Statement of Changes in Net Position — Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

ADDITIONS
Contributions

Employer

Plan members
Total contributions

Investment earnings
Interest, dividends and other investment income
Net change in fair value of investment

Investment expense
Total investment earnings
Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Salaries and wages
Services and supplies

Interest and fiscal charges
Total deductions
Net increase (decrease) in fiduciary net position

Net Position -- beginning of the year
Net Position -- end of the year

See accompanying notes.

Other Post- Special Assessment
Employment Benefit District Custodial
Trust Fund Fund
$ 4,162,643 S -
165,783 -
4,328,426 -
437,378 188,181
2,341,851 65,548
(6,376) -
2,772,853 253,729
7,101,279 253,729
- 33
- 414,339
- 31,080
- 445,452
7,101,279 (191,723)
18,850,350 6,308,135
S 25,951,629 S 6,116,412
34
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City of Reno, Nevada
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of Reno, Nevada (the City) have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. A summary of the more significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation
of the accompanying basic financial statements follows.

Reporting Entity

The City of Reno, Nevada was incorporated on March 16, 1903. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of
government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: general government administration; public
safety (police, fire, dispatch, and building inspection); public works; culture and recreation; community development and
support; urban redevelopment; and other services.

The reporting entity is defined as the primary government and those component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government is such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the organization’s governing board, and either
the ability of the primary government to impose its will on the organization or the possibility that the organization will provide
a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary government. In addition to financial accountability,
component units can be other organizations in which economic resources received or held by that organization are entirely
or aimost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, the primary government is entitled to or has the ability to
othenwise access a majority of the economic resources received or held by that organization and the resources to which the
primary government is entitled or has the ability to otherwise access are significant to the primary government.

The City has determined that the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Reno (RACOR) should be presented as a blended
component until and presented in the City’s financial statements because of the significance of its operational and
financial relationship with the City. RACOR is governed by a separate board, which is comprised of the members of the
City Council, and is dependent upon the City's taxing authority.

Basic Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities and present
consolidated information for the City’s non-fiduciary activities. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on user fees and charges for support.

Included in the statement of net position are capital assets and long-term liabilities including general payment obligations,
revenue bonds and compensated absences. Net position is classified as 1) net investment in capital assets, 2) restricted
net position, and 3) unrestricted net position.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or business-type
activity are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment and include indirect expenses allocated to each function. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
business-type activity, and 2) grants and contributions, which are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other revenues not restricted for use by a particular function
or segment are reported as general revenues.
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City of Reno, Nevada
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds, even though the latter
are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental and proprietary funds are
reported as separate columns on the fund financial statements. Governmental fund financial statements include a
balance sheet and a statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances with schedules presented to
reconcile fund balances presented in the governmental fund financial statements to net position presented in the
government-wide financial statements. Proprietary fund financial statements include a statement of net position; a
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position; and a statement of cash flows.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements — The government-wide financial statements are presented using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary and fiduciary funds financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide statements.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.

For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available as follows:

e A sixty-day availability period is used for revenue recognition for all revenues except grants and property (ad
valorem) taxes.

e A ninety-day availability period is used for revenue recognition for grants.

e Athirty-day availability period is used for revenue recognition for property taxes. Anticipated refunds of property
taxes are recorded as deferred inflows and reductions of revenue when they are measurable and their validity
seems certain.

e Sales taxes are considered available when in the hands of the intermediary collecting government.
e All other revenue sources are considered to be available when cash is received.

The primary revenue sources, which have been treated as susceptible to accrual by the City, are property taxes and
county and state shared revenues.

Expenditures generally are recorded when the liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and self-insurance liabilities, are recorded only
when payment is due.
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City of Reno, Nevada

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

e General Fund — Accounts for all financial resources not accounted for in some other fund.

e Streets Special Revenue Fund — Accounts for motor vehicle fuel taxes and street override property tax revenues
restricted for street improvement expenditures.

e Cabela’s Debt Service Fund — Accounts for the accumulation of resources for payment of the 2007A and 2007B
Sales Tax Increment Bonds (and debt supported by dedicated revenue sources) issued for the purposes of
constructing public improvements and a museum at the Cabela’s Reno retail store.

e City of Reno Capital Projects Fund — accounts for reserves for safety improvements, public art maintenance, public
building construction and maintenance, and designated capital expenditures relating to capital improvement projects
that are not accounted for in other funds.

The City reports the following non-major governmental fund types:

e Special Revenue Funds — Account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specific purposes.

e Debt Service Funds — Account for the accumulation of financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned
for the repayment of debt principal and interest.

e Capital Projects Funds — Account for financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to the
improvement, acquisition, or construction of capital assets.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements — Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services, and producing and
delivering goods in connection with the proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the City’s proprietary funds are charges for goods and services and other user fees. Operating expenses include the
cost of goods and services, administrative expenses, and capital asset depreciation. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

e Sanitary Sewer Fund — Accounts for the provision of sewer services and connection fee revenues restricted for
capital projects.

e  Building Permits Fund — Accounts for resources provided by the issuance of building permit fees.

The City reports the following non-major proprietary type:

e Internal Service Funds — Account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency to
other departments or agencies of the City and to other governmental units on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements — Fiduciary fund financial statements, comprised of a statement of net position, report
the City’s activities that are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of operational
results. Fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

The City reports the following fiduciary fund types:
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City of Reno, Nevada
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

e Special Assessment District Custodial Fund — Account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals,
private organizations, other governments or other funds including the collection and disbursement of special
assessments.

e  Other Post-Employment Benefit Trust Fund — Accounts for assets held in an irrevocable trust fund, which are to be
used for payment of postemployment benefits other than pensions. The assets are invested by the State of Nevada
Retirement Benefit Investment Fund. To date, the City has elected not to pay benefits out of the fund until such time
as the fund has sufficient financial resources to meet those obligations.

Assets and Liabilities

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments — The City’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand
deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. The
proprietary funds participate in the City’s cash and investment pool (the Pool). The Pool has the general characteristics of
a demand deposit account in that proprietary funds may effectively withdraw amounts from the Pool at any time.
Accordingly, amounts invested in the Pool are considered to be cash equivalents. Monies that are not required for
immediate obligations are invested.

Investments are reported at fair value, regardless of the length of time remaining to maturity. The fair values of
investments are determined using quotations obtained from independent published sources.

Receivables, Payables and Unearned Revenues — Property tax receivables that are not expected to be collected within
thirty days of year end are recognized as unearned revenue in the fund financial statements, rather than revenue since
the asset is not available to satisfy current obligations. Unearned revenues also arise when the City receives resources
before it has a legal claim to them such as when property taxes for the following tax year are received before year end. At
June 30, 2023, notes receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts totaling $34,997,950.

Washoe County is responsible for the assessment, collection and subsequent distribution to the City of property taxes.
Property tax rates are set in June of each year, and property tax bills are mailed out by August 1st of each year. They are
due by the third Monday in August. If the property tax is greater than $100, installments may be made and are due by the
third Monday in August and the first Mondays in October, January and March.

Pursuant to NRS 361.483(7), the Washoe County Treasurer must assess a 4% penalty on any one installment that is
delinquent, a 5% penalty on any two installments together with accumulated penalties that are delinquent, a 6% penalty on
any three installments together with accumulated penalties that are delinquent, and a 7% penalty together with
accumulated penalties if all four installments are delinquent. In the event of nonpayment, Washoe County files a lien
against the property on the first Monday in June. If delinquent taxes and penalties are not paid after two years from the
date of the lien, the Washoe County Treasurer obtains a deed to the property and sells the property to satisfy the lien.

Inventories and Prepaid Items — Inventories in the governmental funds are valued at cost, which approximates market,
using the first-in/first-out method. Inventories in proprietary funds are valued at the lower of cost (first-in/first-out method)

or market. Inventories in proprietary funds are valued at the lower of cost (first-in/first-out method) or market.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both the
government-wide and fund financial statements.
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City of Reno, Nevada
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

In the governmental fund financial statements, inventories and prepaid items are recorded as expenditures when
consumed rather than when purchased.

Restricted Assets — The ordinance levying a connection fee for tapping into the City’s sewer lines restricts all monies
received for the construction of and improvements to the sewer plant and sewer line system. Accordingly, a portion of the
assets in the sanitary sewer enterprise fund have been restricted for that purpose.

Property Held for Resale — Property held for resale represents land held by the RACOR for eventual resale and the
proceeds of such sales must be used for future redevelopment projects.

Capital Assets — Capital assets are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined as those assets with an initial cost of $10,000 or more
and an estimated useful life of more than one year. All purchased capital assets are valued at cost or estimated historical
cost, including capitalized interest incurred during the construction phase on debt-financed projects. Donated capital
assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in a service concession arrangement are
reported at acquisition value on the date received.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not significantly increase the functionality of the assets or materially
extend the assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings 10-50
Depressed railroad trench improvement 100
Other improvements other than buildings 10-30
Machinery, equipment and software 2-20
Infrastructure 10-60
Art and historical treasures 140

Long-Term Liabilities — In the government-wide and proprietary fund statements, long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities on the statement of net position. Premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method. Debt issuance costs are reported as
expenses in the period incurred. For current and advance refundings resulting in defeasance of debt, the difference
between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the defeased debt is deferred and amortized as a
component of interest expense using the straight-line method, which also approximates the effective interest method.

In the governmental fund financial statements, premiums, discounts and debt issuance costs are recognized in the period
they are paid or received. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual net proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.
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City of Reno, Nevada
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Compensated Absences — It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned vacation and sick leave
benefits that would be paid to them upon separation form City service if not previously taken. Accumulated sick leave
benefits are payable to terminated employees who have accumulated a set number of hours up to a specified maximum,
depending on the particular employee association. A liability for these obligations is reported in the government-wide and
proprietary fund statements as incurred. A liability for compensated absences is reported in the governmental fund
financial statements only to the extent it is due and payable at year end. Expenditures for compensated absences are
recognized by the applicable fund when paid.

Deferred Compensation Plan — In addition to the retirement plan disclosed in Note 10, the City offers its employees a
deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. This plan, which is available
to all City employees, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation
is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or an unforeseeable emergency. The City may be
required to, depending on the particular employee association, contribute up to 5% to the deferred compensation plan.
The assets of these plans are held in trust outside the control of the City. Since the assets and income of these plans are
not considered assets of the City and are not subject to the claims of the City’s general creditors, these plans are not
reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) — For the purposes of measuring the City’s OPEB liability,
deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the City’s OPEB Plans, and additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position have been determined on
the same basis as they are reported by the City's OPEB Plans. For this purpose, the City recognizes benefit payments
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms, and investments are reported at estimated fair value.

Multiple-Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan — The City uses the same basis used in the Public
Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada’'s (PERS) Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for reporting its
proportionate share of the PERS collective net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, including information related to PERS fiduciary net position and related additions
to/deductions. Benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized by PERS when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. PERS investments are reported at fair value.

Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan — The City uses the same basis used in the Judicial Retirement
System of Nevada's (JRS) Annual Financial Report for reporting its proportionate share of the JRS net pension liability,
deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, including information related to JRS
fiduciary net position and related additions to/deductions from. Benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized by JRS when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. JRS'’s investments are
reported at fair value.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net assets that applies to future periods; and, therefore, will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The government-wide and proprietary funds
statement of net assets reports deferred refunding charges (the difference between the reacquisition price and the net
carrying amount of the defeased debt), which will be amortized over the life of the related debt; and amounts related to
pensions and other post-employment benefits, including 1) the changes in proportion and differences between actual
contributions and proportionate share of contributions related to pensions, which will be amortized over the average
expected remaining service life of all employees that are provided with pension benefits, and 2) contributions made
subsequent to the measurement date, which will be recognized in the subsequent year.
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Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenues) until that time. The governmental funds balance sheets report
unavailable property tax revenues, leases, and special assessment revenues, which will be recognized as revenue in the
period that the amounts become available. The government-wide and proprietary funds statement of net position reports
amounts related to pensions, other post-employment benefits, and leases including 1) the differences between expected
and actual experience and changes of assumptions, which will be amortized over the average expected remaining service
life of all employees that are provided with pension benefits, 2) the net difference between projected and actual earnings
on investments, which will be amortized over five years and 3) the recognition of leases revenues over the life of the
lease.

Stabilization Arrangements

The stabilization fund was created in October 2014 by the City Council under Resolution No. 8015 for the purpose of
stabilizing the City’s operations and mitigating the effects of a natural disaster.

Resources for the stabilization fund include committed revenue from the general fund in an amount determined to be
available for this purpose. The balance in the stabilization fund is limited to 10% of prior year general fund expenditures,
excluding expenditure of federal funds. Cash, cash equivalents and investments, investment income, and fund balance in
the stabilization fund may not revert to any other fund or be used as a surplus for any purpose other than specified in the
foregoing paragraph.

Expenditures from this fund may only be made if the total actual revenue falls short of the total anticipated revenue in the
general fund for the fiscal year in which the City uses that money; or to pay expenses incurred by the local government to
mitigate the effects of a natural disaster.

Net Position

In the government-wide statements and proprietary fund statements, net position is reported as 1) net investment in
capital assets, 2) restricted, or 3) unrestricted. Net position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on it are
either 1) imposed by external parties (such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or other governments), or 2) imposed by
law through a constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

Fund Balance
Fund balances of governmental funds are classified in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, as follows:

Nonspendable fund balances include items that cannot be spent. This includes amounts that are notin a spendable form
(for example, inventories and prepaid items) and amounts that are legally or contractually required to remain intact, such

as permanent fund principal balance.

Restricted fund balances have constraints placed upon the use of resources either by an external party or imposed by law
through a constitutional provision or enabling legislation.
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Committed fund balances can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by a formal action
(creation of an ordinance or resolution, in which either are equally binding) of the City Council, which is the City’s highest
level of decision-making authority. These constraints remain binding unless removed or changed in the same manner
used to create the constraints.

Assigned fund balances include amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific purpose, but are
neither restricted nor committed. Such intent should be expressed by the City Council or appropriately authorized
officials. The City Council has set forth by resolution the manner of making fund balance assignments. Constraints
imposed on the use of assigned fund balance mirror the requirements set forth in the applicable GASB statement for all
funds except the general fund. The City Manager was given authority under the same resolution to determine assigned
fund balances in the general fund. For governmental funds, other than the general fund, this is the classification for
residual amounts that are not restricted, committed or nonspendable.

Unassigned fund balance is the classification used by the general fund for residual amounts not included in the four
categories described above.

Prioritization and Use of Available Resources

When both restricted resources and other resources (i.e., committed, assigned and unassigned) can be used for the same
purpose, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first. Furthermore, when committed, assigned and unassigned
resources can be used for the same purpose, it is the City’s policy to use committed resources first, assigned second, and
unassigned last.

Interfund Activity

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or services
rendered. The resulting payables and receivables, which are outstanding at year end, are referred to as due to or due
from other funds in the fund financial statements. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures
or expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures in the
reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures in the fund that is reimbursed. Any residual balances between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in government-wide financial statements as internal
balances.

Use of Estimates

Timely preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates that affect reported amounts. Accordingly, these estimates may require revision
in future periods. Significant estimates include compensated absences, other post-employment benefits, pension liability,
and useful lives of capital assets.
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Note 2 — Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City adopts annual budgets, in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) and the City’s Charter, for all
governmental and proprietary fund types, which are formally integrated and employed as a management control device.
These budgets were amended for certain funds during the year. All budget augmentations made during the current
year were as prescribed by law. All budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States and used by the City for financial reporting.

The City follows the following procedures to establish, modify, and control budgetary data:

Prior to April 15, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year
commencing the following July 1. These operating budgets include proposed expenditures and expenses and the
means of financing them. Appropriations are required to be detailed by type (salaries and wages, employee
benefits, services and supplies, or capital outlay) within a department, function, and fund.

The budget for all funds is filed as a tentative budget with the State of Nevada (the State or Nevada) Department of
Taxation, and public hearings are conducted prior to the adoption of the budget to obtain taxpayer comment.

On or before June 1, the budget is legally adopted by a majority vote of the City Council members.

The NRS require budget controls to be exercised at the function level. The City Manager is authorized under the
NRS to amend the budget by transferring appropriations within a function or program. Transfers between any
function or program within a fund or transfers of appropriations between funds and the contingency account, may
be authorized subject to subsequent approval by the City Council.

Revisions that alter the total appropriations of a function or fund must be approved in advance by the City Council
in the form of a resolution. If the fund being augmented receives property tax revenue, notice is published in the
local newspaper three working days in advance of the public meeting.

All unencumbered appropriations lapse at the fiscal year end.

The City cannot expend any money, incur any liability, or enter into any contract, which by its term involves the
expenditure of money in excess of the amount appropriated for a given function, except for bond payments, short-
term financing payments, and any other long-term contracts expressly authorized by law. In addition, net position in
proprietary funds may not be a deficit.

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations
For the year ended June 30, 2023, there were no funds and/or functions where total expenditures/expenses exceeded
appropriations.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, total expenditures exceed appropriations for the following funds and/or functions,
which are exempt from the provisions of NRS 354.626:

Cabela’s Sales Tax Increment Debt Service Fund, Debt Service Function - $(600)
Debt Service Fund, Debt Service Function - $(218)
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Redevelopment Agency Debt Service Fund, Debt Service Function - $(17,658)
Risk Retention, Internal Service Fund - $(63,367)
Self-Funded Workers Compensation, Internal Service Fund — $(14,281,071)

These over expenditures were funded by available assets in excess of liabilities as presented by fund balance or net
position in the respective funds.

Deficit Fund Balances or Net Position

At June 30, 2023, the Self-Funded Workers Compensation Internal Service Fund had a net position deficit of $59,361,974.
The deficit is expected to remain until such time as the State Legislature provides a solution to the heart/lung presumptive
liability issue. The $15,188,522 negative fund balance in the Cabela’s Debt Service Fund is due to insufficient pledged
revenues for the 2007A & B Sales Tax Increment Revenue Bonds.

Tax Abatements

All tax abatement agreements/programs, entered into by the State of Nevada, have been summarized by type of
agreement/program and the gross, accrual basis reduction of the City’s taxes for the year ended June 30, 2023, and are
aggregated as follows:

Agreement/program description — Nevada Revised Statutes 360.753 — Partial abatement of certain taxes imposed on
aircraft, components of aircraft and other personal property used for certain purposes related to aircraft.

Amount abated during the year ended June 30, 2023 $19,038
Specific tax being abated — Personal property taxes and/or sales and use taxes

Agreement/program description — Nevada Revised Statutes 360.754 — Partial abatement of certain taxes imposed on new
or expanded data center

Amount abated during the year ended June 30, 2023 $7,319,184
Specific tax being abated — Property taxes and/or sales and use taxes

Agreement/program description — Nevada Revised Statutes 374.357 — Partial abatement for eligible machinery or
equipment used by certain new or expanded businesses

Amount abated during the year ended June 30, 2023 $575,924
Specific tax being abated — Sales and use taxes

Agreement/program description — Nevada Revised Statutes 701A.370 — Partial abatement of certain taxes imposed on
renewable energy facilities

Amount abated during the year ended June 30, 2023 $102,380
Specific tax being abated — Property taxes and/or sales and use taxes
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Adoption of New GASB Pronouncements
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the City implemented the following GASB Pronouncements:

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. Issued May 2019, the primary objectives of this Statement are to
provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated
with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related
note disclosures. There is no impact to the City for implementing this standards.

GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnership and Availability Payment Arrangements.
Issued March 2020, the primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues
related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). It also provides guidance for accounting
and financial reporting for availability payment arrangements (APAs). There is no impact to the City for implementing
this standards.

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITAs). Issued May 2020, the
primary objective of this Statement is to provide guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based
information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This statement (1) defines a
SBITA,; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscriptions asset — an intangible asset — and a
corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments,
including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. Please reference Note 7
under Subscriptions Payable for implementation of GASB Statement 96.

GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022. Issued April 2022, the objectives of this Statement are to enhance
comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by
addressing (a) practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB
Statements and (b) accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees. There is no impact to the City for
implementing this standards.

New Accounting Pronouncements (not yet adopted)
The following GASB pronouncements have been issued, but are not effective as of June 30, 2023:

GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections. Issued June 2022, the primary objective of this
Statement is to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections
to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or
assessing accountability. Statement No. 100 will be effective for the City for fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.

GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. Issued June 2022, Governments commonly provide benefits to
employees in the form of compensated absences. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information
needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance for compensated absences.
Statement No. 101 will be effective for the City for fiscal year ending June 30, 2025.

The City will implement new GASB pronouncements no later than the required effective date. The City is currently

evaluating whether or not the above listed new GASB pronouncements will have a significant impact on the City's
financial statements.
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Note 3 — Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
At June 30, 2023, the City’s cash, cash equivalents and investments (including restricted amounts) were as follows:

Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investments

Cash in bank S 21,077,895
Cash equivalents 123,383,675
Investments 362,361,678
Total pooled cash, cash equivalents and investments 506,823,248

Non-pooled cash, cash equivalents and investments

Petty cash 318,650
Cash in bank 743,003
Cash equivalents 24,776,248
Investments 25,951,629
Total non-pooled cash, cash equivalents and investments 51,789,530
Total pooled and non-pooled cash, cash equivalents and investments S 558,612,778

At June 30, 2023, total cash, cash equivalents and investments (including restricted amounts) were presented on the
City’s financial statements as follows:

Total governmental activities S 340,845,107
Total business-type activities 185,414,831
Total fiduciary funds 32,352,840
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments S 558,612,778

When investing monies, the City is required to comply with the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS). City monies must be
deposited with federally insured banks. The City is authorized to use demand accounts, time accounts and certificates of
deposit. The NRS do not specifically require collateral for demand deposits, but do specify that collateral for time deposits
may be of the same type as those described for permissible State investments. Permissible State investments are similar
to allowable City investments, described above, except that some State investments are for longer terms and include
securities issued by municipalities outside of the State.

At year end, the City’s carrying amount of deposits for cash in bank was $22,139,549 and the bank balance was

$24,036,070. As of June 30, 2023, the City’s bank balance was either insured by the Federal Depository Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) or fully collateralized in accordance with the NRS as discussed in the following paragraph.
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The City manages its custodial credit risk related to deposits by participating in the State’s Pooled Collateral Program,

which was created during the 2003 legislative session to monitor collateral maintained by depositories for local

government agency deposits. This program provides for centralized processing and management of all pledging and
maintenance of collateral by the State Treasurer’s Office rather than each local agency and eliminates the need for the
City to establish separate custodial agreements with each financial institution. The City’s authorized investment types,
maximum maturities, portfolio concentration limits, and minimum credit ratings are as follows:

Maximum Maximum Minimum Rating
Maximum Percentage Investment Standard &

Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio In One Issuer Poor’s Moody’s
Banker’s acceptances 180 days 20% 5% A-1 P-1
Commercial paper 270 days 20% None A-1 P-1
Money market mutual funds None None None AAA Aaa
Negotiable certificates of deposit None None None N/A N/A
Collateralized nonnegotiable certificates of deposit None None None N/A N/A
Negotiable notes and medium-term obligations of

local governments within the State of Nevada 5 years None None N/A N/A
Notes and Bonds issued by U.S. Corporations 5 years 20% None A A-2
Repurchase agreements 90 days None 10% N/A N/A
U.S. Treasury obligations 10 years None None N/A N/A
U.S. Agency securities

Federal National Mortgage 10 years None None N/A N/A

Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation 10 years None None N/A N/A

Federal Farm Credit Bank 10 years None None N/A N/A

Federal Home Loan Bank 10 years None None N/A N/A

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 10 years None None N/A N/A

Government National Mortgage Association 10 years None None N/A N/A
Local government and trust investment pools None None None N/A N/A

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, defines fair value, establishes a framework for

measuring fair value and provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure

fair value.

The three levels of fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 — Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 — Inputs are other observable inputs.

Level 3 — inputs are unobservable.

The fair value measurement level within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is deemed significant
to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of

unobservable inputs.
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The estimated fair values of the City’s U.S. Treasury obligations, commercial paper, notes, bonds and other obligations
issued by U.S. Corporations are based on quoted market prices provided by recognized broker dealers (Level 1 inputs).
The estimated fair value of its U.S. Agency securities is based on matrix pricing model that maximizes the use of
observable inputs for similar securities as provided by recognized broker dealers (Level 2 inputs). The estimated fair value
of the City’s Local Government Investment Pool and Nevada RBIF Retirement System investments are based on the
City’s proportionate share of the value of the pooled investments (Level 3 inputs).

At June 30, 2023, the City had the following cash equivalents and investments:

Weighted
Fair Average
Interest Rate Maturity Par Cost Value Maturity (Years)
Pooled cash equivalents and investments
11/15/2023 to
U.S. Treasury obligations 0.25% - 3.0% 2/15/2028 $190,810,000 $174,274,712 $166,281,619 2.5
Commercial paper 0.0% - 2.72% 7/1/2022 to
11/22/2023 18,361,000 18,029,853 18,112,248 0.4
U.S. Agency securities
Federal National 8/1/2027 to
Mortgage Association 1.38% -4.88% 11/1/2046 6,878,138 6,757,956 6,378,766 14.71
Federal Home Loan 12/25/2024 to
Bank 1.0% - 4.46% 12/1/2026 24,495,462 24,342,471 23,379,950 9.9
Federal Agency 12/25/2039 to
Bond / Note .38% - 1.50% 11/17/2025 17,500,000 17,499,999 15,957,263 217
Local Government
Investment Pool Variable On demand - 123,730,064 123,383,675 N/A
Notes, bonds and other
obligations issued by U.S. 12/6/2023 to
Corporations 0.5%-5.21% 4/28/2028 72,274,000 72,459,754 69,545,206 3.03
Asset-backed 7/15/2024 to
Securities 0.34% - 5.23% 6/15/2023 23,044,482 23,625,649 23,013,124 3.96
Foreign Issues 0.5% - 5.72% 9/13/2023 to
6/9/2027 40,930,000 40,839,015 38,555,571 2.29
Money Market Variable On demand - 1,137,931 1,137,931
Total pooled cash equivalents
and investments 394,293,083 502,697,404 485,745,353
Non-pooled cash equivalents and investments
Money market mutual funds Variable On demand - 25,113,176 24,776,247 N/A
Nevada RBIF Retirement
System Trust Units Variable On demand - 25,951,629 25,951,629 N/A
Total non-pooled cash equivalents - 51,064,805 50,727,876
and investments
Total cash equivalents and investments $ 394,293,083 $ 553,762,209 $ 536,473,229

* Certain U.S. Agency securities have call provisions, which, if exercised, would shorten the maturity of these investments
The State of Nevada, Local Government Investment Pool is an external investment pool administered by the State

Treasurer, with oversight provided by the Board of Finance. The fair value of the City’s position in the pool is the same as
the value of the pool shares.
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Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. This

risk can be reduced by diversifying the durations of the fixed-income investments that are held at a given time. The City

manages its exposure to declines in fair values by limiting its weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to three

years or less in accordance with its investment policy.

The following is a summary of the credit quality distribution and concentration of credit risk by investment type as a
percentage of their respective investment pool:

Standard & Percent of

Pooled Investments Poor’s Moody's Portfolio
U.S. Treasury Notes * > 34.23%
Commercial paper A1 P-1 3.73%
U.S. Agency Securities

Federal National Mortgage Association AA+ Aaa 1.31%

Federal Home Loan Bank 4.81%
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